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Company’s Title: Soor Fuel Marketing Co (K. S. C.)
Commercial Registry & Date: 113393, dated 9/4/2006

Paid-Up capital: 40,470,758.000 Kuwaiti Dinar
Shared Issued & Subscribed: 404,707,580 shares
Number of shares Authorized:404,707,580 shares
Headquarters: State of Kuwait — AIMirgab — Bl. 3 — Omar Bin Alkhatab street - KBT
P.O. Box: 28396 — Safat: 13144 — Kuwait

Soor Fuel Marketing Co (K. S. C.) was incorporated under the Amiri Decree No
(297) of 2005, issued on 22/11/2005 as a Kuwaiti public shareholding company.

The business activities of the company include acquisition, construction, leasing,
operation andmaintenance of the petrol filling stations. The company also
constructs, develops, operates and maintains customers services centers at these
stations. These centers provide all services related to cars and vehicles such as oll
change, car wash, maintenance services, repair and technical testing of vechiles
and supermarket services.

The company provides other services such as petrol filling, storage, transfer,
leasing and trading in petrol products and manufactured materials whether

wholesale or retail.

The company also purchases, leases, acquires and sells lands and real estates in
the various locations.

The company can perform such business in the state of Kuwait and abroad.

The company may have interests or participate in any manner with any institution
which participates or buys such institutions or have them affiliates.



OUR VISION

To become a leading “fuel marketing company” through acquisition, alliances
and strategic partnerships — delivering diversified & integrated energy solutions —
while growing in size, revenue and presence.

SOOR VALUES

LEADERSHIP & EXCELLENCE - we are committed to being leaders in our
industry and our country — setting an example for excellence in all what we say &
do — in our products, services & actions.

TRUST & INTEGRITY - we are committed to building a long term Relationship
with our clients, partners, employees, & community — one based on mutual
respect, trust and the highest standards.

GROWTH & PERFORMANCE - we are committed to providing our partners and
shareholders growth opportunities and profitable returns on their investments.

COMMITMENT & DEDICATION - we are committed to achieving Our goals
together — offering great work environment and professional growth opportunities
to our employees.

RESPONSIBILITY | CORPORATE CITIZENSHIP - we are Committed to
responsible citizenship — through active community involvement and respect for
our environment.

OUR MISSION

Soor is committed to build a reputation of quality & integrity by providing
innovative products and services to the local and regional markets while
promoting respect for the environment and the society.
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CHAIRMAN MESSAGE
ESTEEMED SHAREHOLDERS,
GREETINGS & PEACE BE UPON YOU,

On behalf of myself & my fellow colleagues, members of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to
present to you the Annual report of Soor Fuel Marketing Company the audited financial
statements for the financial year ended on 31 December 2020.

In the Year 2020, the whole world was affected by the Covid-19 pandemic, which has negatively
affected the entire world economy. Despite of these unprecedented circumstances, Soor Fuel
Marketing Company has accomplished some goals in terms of upgrading & renovating its
services and operations, by adding the ALFA PAY (RFID) Service. ALFA PAY Service is the first
of its kind in Kuwait, it saves time and effort and prevents Refueling fraud. Additionally, the ALFA
PAY Service had a significant role in maintaining social distancing in our fuel stations during the
Covid-19 pandemic by paying remotely through the Alfa website or the smart phone application.
Soor Fuel Marketing Company has also developed the ALFA TAP service, which also depends
on filling the car only, and paying online via the Alfa website or the smart phone application.

Subsequently, the foregoing achievements were reflected in the Company’s net profits during
2020, amounting to KD 2,608,175 (Two million six hundred & eight thousand one hundred
seventy five Kuwaiti Dinars) from total sales amounting to KD 116,403,161 (One hundred sixteen
million four hundred & three thousand one hundred sixty-one). With 6.45 Fils earnings per share.
These figures underline a good financial position and positive results that reflect Soor Fuel
Marketing Company’s unrelenting efforts to maintain its excellent and sustainable performance.

In conclusion, | am pleased to express my deepest thanks and appreciation to His Highness the
Amir, Sheikh Nawaf Al-Ahmed Al-Jaber Al-Sabah & His Highness the Crown Prince, Sheikh
Meshaal Al-Ahmad Al-Jaber Al-Sabah. | also wish to thank all our honorable shareholders and
esteemed customers for their continuous support and valuable trust. | also thank all Government
Authorities, particularly Kuwait Petroleum Corporation, Kuwait National Petroleum Company,
Environment Public Authority, Fire General Department, Kuwait Municipality and State
Properties Department for their ongoing cooperation and support of the Company’s activities,
that has contributed in promoting growth and development and the attainment of further goals
and achievements for many years to come, with the blessings of Allah. Finally, | would to thank
all the frontliners for all the exceptional efforts they do to fight the Covid-19 pandemic.
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Social Responsibility

Believing in the importance of its social responsibility, Sour Fuel Marketing

Company has:
« Participated in protecting the environment from pollution and environmental damage

through waste recycling technology throughout the company and working on
collecting waste as an initial step to recycle it.

« In light of the closures approved by the government to limit and control the spread of
the Covid-19 pandemic, Soor Fuel Marketing Company has provided daily meals to
workers at Alfa fuel stations in addition to providing housing for workers in order to
reduce the possibility of a worker being infected with the Coronavirus (Covid-19).

Sales Growth

e In 2020, the refueling contract has been renewed with the following governmental
entities: The Ministry of Awqaf & the Public Authority of Industry.

e Increasing customer demand for ALFA PAY (RFID) service, the first of its kind in
Kuwait, a service that saves time and effort and prevents spoofing when filling fuel.

« Signing the refueling contract with the Ministry of Interior.

« Signing with Trolley General Trading Company to operate the Convenience Store
Building at Salmiya fuel station No. 25, Shaab fuel station No. 48 and Sabahiya fuel
station No. 115.

« Signing with Ali Al-Ghanim Company to provide a fast maintenance service for cars at
Salmiya fuel station No. 25 & Mubarkiya-Bayan fuel station No. 61.

» Signing with Berlin Tires Company to provide a fast maintenance service for cars at
Abu-Halifa fuel station No. 08.



» Enforcing safety, health, environmental and quality requirements to all fuel operating
staff, contractors and investors through regular meetings & workshops to spread
awareness and avoid risks.

 Training the stations’ staff on the standards of the Code of Practice (COP).

» Enforcing safety, health, environmental and quality requirements to contractors and
investors.

e Training all fuel stations employees on managing and operating the new RFID
System.

» Successfully passing the Governance external audit without any negative notes.

» Establishing regular training courses for managing & operating fuel stations for all the
security guards & refueling workers working at Alfa stations.

» Raising awareness among the station workers & investor workers about preventive
health to avoid getting infected with coronavirus.

» Enforcing wearing masks & sterilizing the stations regularly to preserve the health of
both the customers & employees.

» Applying the “Tap & Pay” payment mechanism to preserve the health of both the
customers & employees.

» The health, safety, environment and quality sector had a leading role in following up
all the pending work with all departments in the company, especially the technical
services sector, projects sector and operations sector and implement all requirements
related to the regulatory at KNPC and the governmental authorities of the state.

» Updating all official documents as per the requirements of the regulatory authority in
Kuwait National Petroleum Company and as per ISO requirements.

» Holding safety, health, environment and quality courses for investors’ workers.



» Achieving 100% of recruiting Kuwaiti labor in the fuel stations in 2020.

e Training 70 Station attendant from the national labor, in cooperation with The
Austrialian University in term of safety, health, and environment.

« In collaboration with the workforce-restructuring program, the training plan for 2020-
2021 was executed to qualify 70 newly hired employees from the national cadres
technically and administratively on the highest standards through utilizing globally
certified training institutes.

e Appointing 25 new mentors and training them on managing and operating fuel
stations, theoretically and practically, in cooperation with the related departments.

» Applying the labor law regulations into practice in accordance with the requirements
of the Public Authority of Manpower and the Ministry of Social Affairs and Labor.

» Implementing the electronic transfer system for anything related to work permits for
Kuwaitis and non-Kuwaitis and residency for non-Kuwaitis.

» Providing a healthy work environment for all employeesby implementing the health
restrictions in the face of the Covid-19 pandemic.

e Contributing to fulfilling the conditions of the Ministry of Finance - Taxation
Department for 2020.

« Fulfilling the conditions of the Public Authority for Manpower & achieving the national
employment percentage for the year 2020.



* Implementing the environmental project at Jaber Al-Ali fuel stations No. 84 according to
the Five-Year Plan adopted by Kuwait National Petroleum Company (KNPC).

e The renovation, development, and re-building of Farwanya fuel station no. 80, Mina
Abdullah fuel station no. 43. In addition to, increasing the number of fuel dispensers in
the renovated islands for various products, and adding an automatic carwash station, a
Quick Service Area, and a Convenience Store.

» Adding a Convenience Store at Rabiya fuel station no. 91.

e Implementing the safety, health, environmental and quality requirements to all
contractors and investors.

e Implementing preventive health restrictions to face of the Covid-19 pandemic.

» Maintaining 100% of Kuwaiti labor recruitment in the fuel stations in 2021.

e Reducing employee turnover and seeking to support and quality the company’s
employees.

e Maximizing production efficiency through planning the Company’s human resources
needs in terms of quantity and quality using modern scientific methods in general and
statistical and arithmetic means

e Supporting and training the Kuwaiti cadres, as well as implementing the training plan
adopted by the Public Authority of Manpower and KFAS.

e Update all the state property contracts for all Alfa fuel stations owned by Soor Fuel
Marketing Company and signed with the Ministry of Finance.

e Enhance coordination among all the company departments to follow up the
development and improvement of the fuel and car wash stations.

e Develop an advanced inventory system for the assets of the company in order to
complete the Company’s audit procedures and fulfill the regulatory requirements of the
Capital Markets Authority.



A WORD OF APPRECIATION

Soor Fuel Marketing Company expresses its sincere gratitude and
appreciation to all those who contributed to the success of the company
during the financial year 2020.

On this occasion, we present our deepest gratitude to His Highness
Sheihk Mishal Al-Ahmad Al-Jaber Al Sabah, Amir of State of Kuwait, for
his wise leadership of the State of Kuwait and his kind support for our
local economy to activate the wheel of development.

We would also like to extend our thanks and gratitude for Kuwait
Petroleum Corporation, Kuwait National Petroleum Company and the
Ministry of Finance for their valuable help and continuous advice. We
especially thank the General Authority of Environment, General
directorate of Fire and Kuwait Municipality.

Soor Fuel Marketing Company extends great recognition to all the
employees for their devotement and hard work that led to the great
achievements last year. Thanks to their commitment and cooperation
among themselves and with the company, our success had been built and
will continue to progress, grow and spread.

Thank you all for your efforts and your continued support. We grow and
evolve with you and by you...



ALSOOR FUEL MARKETING COMPANY K.S.C.P
AND IT'S SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AL SOOR FUEL
MARKETING COMPANY K.S.C.P.

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Al Soor Fuel Marketing Company
K.S.C.P. (the “Parent Company”) and its subsidiary (collectively the “Group™), which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated
statement of income, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence
Standards) (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional Judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year, These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

We identified the following key audit matter:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AL SOOR FUEL
MARKETING COMPANY K.S.C.P. (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Key Audit Matters (continued)
Valuation of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income amounting to KD 21,797,691. These financial assets are measured at fair value with the
corresponding fair value change recognized in other comprehensive income. The valuation of the
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income is inherently subjective - most
predominantly for the level 3 of fair value hierarchy, since these are valued using inputs other than
quoted prices in an active market. Fair value can be subjective in nature and involve various
The use of different valuation techniques and assumptions could produce significantly different
estimates of the values of these financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Due to the significance of estimation uncertainty associated with the fair valuation and impairment
analysis of the financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, this is considered
a key audit matter.

We performed audit procedures to assess the methodology and the appropriateness of the valuation
models and inputs used to value financial assets fair value through other comprehensive income.
As part of these audit procedures, we assessed the accuracy of key inputs used in the valuation such
as quoted market prices, market multiples, and discount rates for lack of marketability and lack of
control, the expected cash flows, risk free rates and credit spreads by benchmarking them with
external data, investigated significant differences. Finally, we assessed the adequacy of the
disclosures relating to financial assets in notes 8 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

Other information included in the Group's 2020 Annual Report

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information consists of the information
included in Group’s 2020 Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. We obtained the report of the Parent Company’s Board of Directors, prior
to the date of our auditor's report, and we expect to obtain the remaining sections of the Group's
2020 Annual Report after the date of our auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other
information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing

to report in this regard.
21
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AL SOOR FUEL
MARKETING COMPANY K.S.C.P. (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
Wwhether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AL SOOR FUEL
MARKETING COMPANY K.S.C.P. (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Those Charged with Governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Those Charged with Governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied

From the matters communicated with Those Charged with Govemance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
year and are therefore the key audit matters, We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AL SOOR FUEL
MARKETING COMPANY K.S.C.P. (continued)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Furthermore, in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Parent Company and
the consolidated financial statements, together with the contents of the report of the Parent
Company’s Board of Directors relating to these consolidated financial statements, are in
accordance therewith. We further report that we obtained all the information and explanations
that we required for the purpose of our audit and that the consolidated financial statements
incorporate all information that is required by the Companies Law No 1 of 2016, as amended, and
its executive regulation, as amended, and by the Parent Company's Memorandum of
Incorporation and Articles of Association, as amended, that an inventory was duly carried out and
that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no violations of the Companies Law No 1 of 2016,
as amended, and its exccutive regulation, as amended, nor of the Parent Company’s
Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of Association, as amended, have occurred during
the year ended 31 December 2020 that might have had a material effect on the business of the
Parent Company or on its financial position,

We further report that, during the course of our audit, we have not become aware of any violations
of the provisions of Law No 7 of 2010 concerning the Capital Markets Authority and its related
regulations during the year ended 31 December 2020 that might have had a material effect on the
business of the Parent Company or on its financial position.

BADER A. AL-ABDULJADER
LICENCE NO. 207-A

EY

AL AIBAN, AL OSAIMI & PARTNERS

16 March 2021
Kuwait
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Al Soor Fuel Marketing Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Sales
Cost of sales

Operating expenses
Gross profit

Other income

Rental income

Net investment income
Administrative expenses

Provision for expected credit losses
Impairment of investment property

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR BEFORE CONTRIBUTION TO
KUWAIT FOUNDATION FOR THE ADVANCEMENT OF SCIENCES
(KFAS), NATIONAL LABOUR SUPPORT TAX (NLST), ZAKAT AND
DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Contribution to KFAS
NLST

Zakat

Directors’ remuneration
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

12

2020 2019
KD KD
116,403,161 159,537,423
(106,814,888)  (146,512,843)
(9,082,506)  (11,191,075)
505,767 1,833,505
4,543,349 3,107,960
489,775 374,570
1,335,385 1,849,287
(3,331,660)  (3,042,813)
(361,396) (443,961)
(390,242) '
2,790,978 3,678,548
(25,119) (33,035)
(69,774) (91,763)
(27,910) (36,705)
(60,000) (60,000)
2,608,175 3,457,045
6.45 fils 8.62 fils
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Al Soor Fuel Marketing Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive loss
lTtems that will not be reclassified subsequently to consolidated statement
of income:
Net fair value loss on financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
Income

Other comprehensive loss for the year
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR

2020 2019
KD KD
2,608,175 3,457,045
(4,546,172) (4,022,143)
(4,546,172) (4,022,143)
(1,937,997 (565,098)
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Al Soor Fuel Marketing Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 3] December 2020

ASSETS

Cash, bank balances and term deposits
Accounts receivable and prepayments
Inventories

Investment securities

Property and equipment

Intangible assets

Investment properties

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Share capital

Statulory reserve

Voluntary reserve

Treasury shares

Treasury shares reserve

Cumulative changes in fair value reserve
Retained eamings

Total equity

Liabilities

Term loan

Employees’ end of service benefits
Accounts payable and accruals

Total liabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

2020 2019
Notes KD KD

6 15,476,401 14,264,197
7 3,179,950 4,266,848
805,235 728,475
8 24,261,863 34,261,542
9 22,151,775 23,611,585
12,626,770 11,737,135
4,077,484 4,509,083
82,579,478 93,378,865
12 40,470,758 40,470,758
13 5,627,098 5,348,000
14 5,627,098 5,348,000
15 (23,683) (760,279)

(293,796) .
(4,326,951) 531,607
17,087,268 14,724,903
64,167,792 65,662,989
B 6,000,000
997,780 932,369
16 17,413,906 20,783,507
18,411,686 27,715,876
82,579,478 93,378,865

S) JguJISOOR

—_

Turaif Mohammad Baqger Al Awadhi
{Chairman)

Talal Abmad AFKFars .~

(Vice Chairman & CEO)
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Al Soor Fuel Marketing Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2020
2020 2019
Notes KD KD

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit for the year before contribution to KFAS, NLST, and Zakat and after

Directors’ remuneration 2,730,978 3,618,548
Adjustments to reconcile profit for the year to net cash flows:

Net investment income 4 (1,448,271) (1,028,600)
Depreciation and amortisation 9,10,11 3,466,547 3,689,043
Provision for employees' end of service benefits 142,245 178,076
Provision for expected credit losses 7 361,396 443,961
Unrealised loss (gain) from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 4 112,886 (820,687)
Rent concession (367,656) -
Impairment of investment property 11 390,242

5,388,367 6,080,341
Changes in the working capital:

Inventories (76,760) (139431)
Accounts receivable and prepayments 931,897 1,170,141
Accounts payable and accruals (5,348,479) 3,752,609
Cash flows from operations 895,025 10,863,660
Employees’ end of service benefits paid (76,834) (100,009)
Net cash flows from operating activities 818,171 10,763,651
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and equipment 9 (409,374) (3,113,706)
Addirions to intangible assets 10 (73,248) (975,385)
Purchase of investment securities (8,214,948)  (18,422,626)
Proceeds from sale of investment securities 13,914,633 5,874,303
Term deposits (1,383,479) (850,000)
Investment income received 1,448,271 1,028,600
Net cash flows from (used in) investing activities 5281855  (16,458,814)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Tm loan = ﬁlmlm
Repayment of term loan (6,000,000) -
Sale of treasury shares 442,800

Lease liability paid (597,005) .
Cash dividend paid (117,116)  (2,004,691)
Net cash flows (used in) from financing activities (6,271,321) 3,995,309
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (171,275) (1,699,854)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 5,114,197 6,814,051
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 6 4,942,922 5,114,197

Non-cash items excluded from the consolidated statement of cash flows:

Adjustments to lease liabilities (2,578,788) -
Adjustments to right-of-use assets 10 23139 -
Adjustments to right-of-use assets on sub-lcasing 206,396
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Al Soor Fuel Marketing Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2020

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

Al Soor Fuel Marketing Company K.S.C.P. (the “Parent Company”) is a Kuwaiti shareholding company incorporated on
20 March 2006 and commenced its operations on 9 May 2006. The Parent Company’s shares were listed on the Kuwait
Stock Exchange on 30 June 2008.

Themnﬁdumdﬁnmchlmmuofﬂwhmwmpmyandmmbﬁdm (collectively the “Group™) for the year ended
31 December 2020 were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors’ on 16 March 2021
and are subject to the approval of the general assembly of sharcholders. The ordinary general assembly of the sharcholders
of the Parent Company has the power to amend these consolidated financial statements afier their issuance.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 was approved by the
shareholders of the Parent Company during the annual general assembly meeting held on 27 April 2020.

The Group conducts the following activities as set forth in Article No. 5 of the Parent Company's Articles of Association:
= Acquisition, establishment, leasing, operating, and maintenance of petrol stations;

- Establishing, developing, operating and maintaining customer service centers at petrol stations, to provide all
automobile services including the changing of oil, car wash, maintenance workshop services and technical check-
ups;

= The ability to fill and store fuel;

= To ship and trade in petroleum products in bulk or retail;

= The purchase, lease, acquisition, and sale of land and real estate in different locations for the purpose of compliance
with the Parent Company's activities;

The head office of the Parent Company is P.O. Box 28396, Safat 13144, State of Kuwait.

The Parent Company is a subsidiary of Alfa Energy Company K.S.C. (Closed) (the “Ultimate Parent Company”).
1.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB").

Basis of measurement
The consolidated financial statements of the Group are prepared under the historical cost convention as modified for the
revaluation at fair value of investment securities.

Functional and presentation currency
The consolidated financial statements of the Group are presented in Kuwaiti Dinars (“KD™), which is the functional
currency of the Parent Company.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

IhmmmmWMuWhhmﬁmofﬂmmﬁhMﬁmMmmthmm
medhthspwhmﬁnmiﬂyw,nceptfarﬂm:ﬂnpﬁmofmwshndudatﬁwﬁwuoﬂlmmrle‘.’.D,

2.2.1  New standards, interpretations and amendments

The Group applied, for the first time, certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after | January 2020. The nature and effect of the changes as a result of adoption of these new accounting standards
are described below.

Amendments to [FRS 3: Definition of a Business
‘l'heamm:l:mnttoll-‘ls3.Buﬂm0mbhﬁm.chﬁﬁumumhmiduedamﬁnus,animegnmdmufmﬁﬁti
and assets must include, llaminimum,mh;utmdlmlhmﬁvcprmﬂnthgemﬂsigniﬁmﬂymmhnmmihe
;bilit;rlnm’utuouqnt.meummr,hchdﬁedmnnhmhmmmhtuﬁmouthcldingaﬂuﬂhcinpummdm
needed to create outputs. These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group but
may impact future years should the Group enter into any business combinations.
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Al Soor Fuel Marketing Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2020

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2.1  New standards, interpretations and amendments (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 7, IFRS 9 and [AS 39: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments to IFRS 9 and IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, provide a number of
reliefs, wb.icl:lpplyhnllhedgingmllﬁmhimMmdﬁwﬂylﬂmhdhyinwumbmhmukmfw.ﬁhdm
mhﬁonnhiphlﬁmwdifm:mfmgimrhummmhﬁulbmlthctimingmdonmountofbmchmuk-buodush
ﬂowuofthehﬂdsﬂlilmurthehedgﬁ;humnnmt.Thﬂalmmdmmtlhldnuimpictunihcmmlidabdﬁnmcia]
muoflheﬁmupuildmlnmhwemthmehediemuﬁmhips,

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS B: Definition of Material

The amendments provide a new definition of material that states “information is material if omitting, misstating or
abwmingitcmddmhlyhcupacwdminﬂumwdwuiomﬂutlhepsimmymufgmen]pmpouﬂmmiﬂ
summmhonunhﬁsnfmmﬁnmdumu,wmhpmﬁdnﬁnnﬁﬂmfmﬂnabumnmedﬁcmpoﬂng
entity.”

Thclmmdnmhchrifyﬁmmwiaﬁtyndﬂdepmdmmemmmmgﬂwofhfwmmeiﬂmindividunllyarin
combination with other information, in the context of the financial statements. A misstatement of information is material
ifitmldmabtyheﬂpmdmhﬂumcdeci:immndebythepﬁmnrymn.mmmmdmmuhudunimpml
mhmmﬁﬁhdﬁmﬂnmmuuf,mhmmwhmymmmhnmwmeﬂmqm

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued on 29 March 2018

The Conceptual chmkhmamdurd,mdmofthemmmuﬁd:huﬁuwuﬁdathmepuu
requ.i:mtsinlnymndud.Th:moftheCmepuMmemthmmmeMSBmdnw]opingmm
mbatpmdwelopmmumumﬁngpoh:imwhereﬂmismq:pliuhhmndndinphwmdtumm:ll
parties to understand and interpret the standards.

The revised Conceptual ['ramework imlﬁummwpmviduupdneﬂduﬁniﬁmmdmmmiﬁmcﬁm
for assets and liabilities and clarifies some important concepts. These amendments had no impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

Early adoption of Amendments to IFRS 16 Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions

On 28 May 2020, the LASB issued Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions - amendment to IFRS 16 Leases. The amendments
provide relief to lessees from applying IFRS 16 guidance on lease modification accounting for rent concessions arising
as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic. As a practical expedient, a lessee may elect not 1o assess whether a
Covﬂ-l?mhmmm&mamuuluamudiﬂmﬁmﬁlumthnmmlhiselecﬁnnuemntsforuy

mmmwmﬂmmmmmaﬂulhmznzﬂ.&rﬁulppﬁuﬁmispermimd.

T'hcﬁrmphnmiyldupudmdq:plieddupnc&cﬂupudimeﬁmﬁw&mIMnyZOIOwlﬂrmtmnmmhmthutmm
theeundiﬁouohnMamﬂLﬂn&mpMMdmmmwhuhﬂnmmlﬂmhhdmlm&ma
mmmm&mmmmmﬁmmummmmmmum
ended 31 December 2020, the Group recognised KD 367,656 in the consolidated statement of income.

Other amendments to IFRSs which are effective for annual accounting period starting from 1 January 2020 did not have
any material impact on the accounting policies, financial position or performance of the Group.

2.2.2  Summary of accounting policies for new transactions and events

Government grants
mmmummwmmnmhmmm&mtwmmm»m and all attached
cunditimlwillbecomplilbdwith.Whenthem:d:lummmpmaeitmitisrmgniﬂeduimmcunasymﬁc
buisoverlhcpq‘iodnlhuﬂwrthudmmﬁ)rwiﬁchﬂisinmdedwmmpm.mupmﬁ.mmemmhlu
to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

mmmmmuofmwm&mmmummmﬁmmmwm

relu-.mdtnpmﬁtorlouoverﬂ:ecxpmdmefulﬁfeofdumhudmdnpmmnofcmmpﬁmufﬂubmwﬁuof
the underlying asset by equal annual instalments.
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Al Soor Fuel Marketing Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2020

2.3 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

Thcnewandmdedmdlrdna.ndinm'pral.au‘mlhna:missund.bulnotyﬂ:ﬂ'cctjve,nptotbedataofissumoeofthe
Group's consolidated financial statements are disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt these new and amended
standards and interpretations, if applicable, when they become effective.

Amendments to IAS 1: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
In January 2020, the IASB issued amendments to paragraphs 69 to 76 of IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements, to
specify the requiremenis for classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments clarify:

What is meant by a right to defer settlement;

That & right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period;

That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right;

That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity instrument would the terms of a
liability not impact its classification.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and must be applied
retrospectively. The Group is currently assessing the impact the amendments will have on current practice and whether

existing loan agreements may require renegotiation.

Reference to the Conceptual Framework — Amendments to IFRS 3

In May 2020, the IASB issued Amendments to IFRS 3, Business Combinations - Reference to the Conceptual Framework,
The amendments are intended to replace a reference to the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Stalements, issued in 1989, with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in March 2018
without significantly changing its requirements.

The Board also added an exception to the recognition principle of IFRS 3 to avoid the issue of potential ‘day 2' gains or
losses arising for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 Levies, if
incurred separately. At the same time, the Board decided to clarify existing guidance in [FRS 3 for contingent assets that
would not be affected by replacing the reference to the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements,

b

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and apply prospectively.
The Group is currently assessing the impact the amendments will have on the consolidated financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use — Amendments to IAS 16

In May 2020, the IASB issued Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use, which prohibits entities
deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment, any proceeds from selling items produced while
brmgingﬂ:atmaettuﬂmIncau‘onamiumdiﬁonnncmryforitwbecapab[cofopmﬁnginthemmrintmdedby
1::mu.mgu-.-m:1t.Il:mm:;m:l,anmﬁtyremgniseatheptnceed.sﬁ'omselli.ngsuchitams,mdthccostsofpmduuingthuscitansI
in profit or loss.

Thcamendmmﬁseﬁmﬁvefurmﬂmpotﬁngpcﬁndsbegimﬁngmuraﬂm [ January 2022 and must be applied
retrospectively to items of property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after the beginning of the earlicst
period presenied when the entity first applies the amendment.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Fees in the ‘10 per cent’ test for derecognition of financial liabilities

As part of its 2018-2020 annual improvements to IFRS standards process the LASB issued amendment to IFRS 9. The
amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified financial
liability are substantially different from the terms of the original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or
received between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the
other’s behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after the
heginningnfthcmnlmpmﬁngpcﬁudmwhichﬂmmﬁtyﬁm

applies the amendment.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 with earlier adoption
permitted. The Group will apply the amendments to financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendment.

Thcamcndmenmmmtupectadmhnvummi-]immtmﬂmﬁmup.
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Al Soor Fuel Marketing Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2020

2.4 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

mmﬁdm&mmmmm&mMdeﬂmcmmmmbﬁmun

31Dmber!ﬂzﬂ.(:ontmihlnhievedwhmmeﬁmzpisnpueimhuﬁghm.mvuhbhmmﬁnmiuinwhmm

wimﬂwinvestumdhntheabilitymlﬁmthnummmiupawoverﬂminvmee.

Specifically, the Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

v Puwowrtheinthoe{i.e.,uhﬁngﬁghuthnlgiveilﬂunummnhimymdi:wtﬂumlwmlmﬁviﬁunfthe
investee);

3 Expuouu.orﬁslm,wuﬁ-hleumrmﬁumiuinmlvmmtuﬁﬂ:ﬂnimm;md

»  The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Gm:]ly.lhmi:slpmpﬁmlhmumumﬂyofvmhgﬁghummmml.hnwmhmmpﬁmmdwhm
derouphmlmrhnamqiorityofthcvnﬁngmdmﬂuﬁshhufmhvutae,ththwpmidmullrdwunflchm
cﬁmmhm;whﬂuitmmwwmmmchﬂm:

b Thenonumnlmemmt(s}wilhﬂuothumhnldn:ofﬁﬁinvm;

» Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

3 TheGrmzp’svoﬁn;riﬂhmdpmdllvntimridm-

Thoﬁroupm—mwhu&ummtitmuohmhvmeifﬁcumdchummhﬂmmllthuemchmto
mmmmofﬂmﬁmel&n@nﬂofuﬂmLC«mﬁdﬁmoﬁmhﬁdwuﬁmmlluGroupobtﬁmcanlmim
mmmﬂmwmummmofmmw

Amu.Iilbﬂiﬁu.inmemdupmmuflmb:idhrquuhndmdhpoudofﬁlrin;ﬂneywmimludedinﬂw
nmsoiidmudﬁnmcialmmum&mm&mmmmlmﬁlhdmm&mpmmcmwlh
subsidiary,

PmﬂtorloumdmhwmpmuuufOClm:uributudtulheaquhyholdunofﬂ:antCm\pmyofﬂnerpmdm
the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. The financial
wﬁmmmnmﬁrmﬂmwm“mmmwmmwm
mnsﬁumtacwmﬁngpoliciu.wmnwuwy,lﬁmmmmnd:mﬁemmwﬂnmmofmhddhﬁumbﬁng
their accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
hwm.upmmdmhﬂmmhﬁngwﬂmcﬁm;bemmmhmofth:&mmdhhamdmﬁxﬂm
mnsolidaﬁm.ﬁchmgeinﬂ:womuhiphmmnfnnﬁdiuy.udtbmlahnofmmﬂ:mmdfwummw
transaction.

Ifthe{'implmusmuulmlmidiny.itdﬂwugnimﬂmrehledmﬁmhldinsmodwill), liabilities, non-
mmﬁh;hmmmdoﬁuwdwﬁw,%uymﬂmahulmﬁmhcmw
statement of income. Any investment retained is recognised at fair value.

The subsidiary of the Group is as follows:
Country of
Name of the company incorporation Principal activities Interest in equity %
2020 2019
Advantage Holding Company K.S.C, Operating Central
(Closed)* Kuwait Markets 9% 96%

*Effective ownership percentage is 100% (2019: 100%).
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Al Soor Fuel Marketing Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2020

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue from the following major sources:
»  Sale of fucl

» Rendering of services

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in a contract with a customer and
excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties, The Group recognises revenue when it transfers control of goods and
services 1o a customer. The Group follows a 5-step process:

Identifying the contract with a customer

Identifying the performance obligations

Determining the transaction price

Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations
Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied

v W W w

Revenue is recognised either at point in time or over time, when (or as) the Group satisfies performance obligations by
transferring the promised goods or services to its customers.

The Group recognises contract liabilities for consideration received in respect of unsatisfied performance obligations and
reports these amounts, if any, as other liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position. Similarly, if the Group
satisfies a performance obligation before it receives the consideration, the Group recognises either a contract asset or
receivable, if any, in its consolidated statement of financial position, depending on whether something other than the passage
of time is required before the consideration is due.

The following specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised,

Sale of fuel
Sale of fuel income is recognised when the Group satisfies performance obligations by transferring the controlled

promised goods or services 10 its customers at an agreed rate.

Rendering of services
The Group earns service income from diverse range of services provided 1o its customers and is recognised at pre-agreed
rates in accordance with the contractual terms.

Interest income
Intﬂutmmisramsn.iaedasﬂwhtuuumumingdmeﬂ’mﬁwmmtmmd.unw“ﬁchﬂ\emm“mﬂy
mm&mMMhmmuwmewmdhﬁmMummhmw amount of the
financial asset,

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the Group's right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when

Rental income
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Taxation

National Labour Support Tax (NLST)

The Parent Company calculates the NLST in accordance with Law No. 19 of 2000 and the Minister of Finance Resolutions
No. 240!'2006!Z.S%ofluﬂﬂewoﬁlforﬂnyw.Asputhllaw,inmmeﬁ'nmlmﬁtmlndmhlidiuias,cnh
dividends from listed companies which are subjected to NLST are deducted from the profit for the year.

Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences (KFAS)

The Parent Company calculates the contribution to KFAS at 1% in accordance with the modified calculation based on
the Foundation's Board of Directors resolution, which states that the income from associates and subsidiaries, Directors’
remuneration, transfer to statutory reserve should be excluded from profit for the year when determining the contribution.

Zakat
Contribution to Zakat is calculated at 1% of the profit of the Parent Company in accordance with the Ministry of Finance
resolution No, 58/2007,



Al Soor Fuel Marketing Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2020

25 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property and equipment
memmmhsmmdmmnwdmmmhﬁmwmmummtbm,fmm

Depreciation is calculated on & straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

»  Buildings on leasehold land 15 years
» Installations and equipment 5-15 years
# Furniture and fixtures 1-5 years
¢ Motor vehicles 5 years
» Right of use 3 years

Themryingva]uuufpmpumyandequipmmmreviewadforimpnirmentwhsnwontsorchﬁngesincimumsmmm
indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the carrying values exceed
Ifhemimmadrmﬂvamhlemnnhemtsmwﬁumdnwnmthdrrecwmhhammnbdngmclﬂgh&nﬂha&fw
value less costs to sell and their value in use.

Expenditure incurred to replace a component of an item of property and equipment that is accounted for separately is
capitalised and the carrying amount of the component that is replaced is written off. Other subsequent expenditure is
capitalised only when it increases future economic benefits of the related item of property and equipment. All other
expmdinutismuguimd&lthtmmoﬁdamdsmemmtofhmmnasthempmu is incurred.

Anitmlofprupurtyanﬂuquipmcmudmysigjﬁﬁcamwniniﬁdlymugmsedisdmognisedupondiupoﬂalwﬁlm
noﬁm:eemmmicbmeﬁtsmcxpecwdﬁnmilsmmdismml.Anygninmluasuisingnndmngnjﬁmufth:m
{ulmlﬂndumediﬁﬂmbetwmﬂmnﬂdispmﬂmmmccmﬁngmomtafmemjisincludndinth:
mmﬁdnmdshmmnfhmwhmthemmisdﬂamgnimd.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriaie.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in
a business combination is its fair valuc as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are
carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated
intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is reflected in the
consolidated statement of income in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible assct with a finite useful life is reviewed at least at each reporting date.

Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the
:mislcmuntedfwhychmujn;theamor&uﬁunpmiodmmnthﬂunppmpﬁnte,mdmmmduchmgesin
accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the consolidated
statement of income in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible assets,

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually
or at the cash-gencrating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective
basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the consolidated statement of income when the asset

is derecognised.
Goodwill
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value
of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the gain is recognised in the consolidated
statement of income.
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Al Soor Fuel Marketing Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2020

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses, For the purpose of
hpdnnmtm;mdﬁnaoqnimdinlm&msmhimﬁmh,ﬁ'omthﬁanquiliﬁnndut.a]luﬂtedmwhoft!w
Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

W‘imgoodwiﬂhube:naﬂnubdtnnud:—gemﬁ:gunitmdpmuﬁhemﬁmﬁminﬂmmilisdilpmednf,lhe
soudwillmociﬂodw'hhthudiq:oudoputﬁmhhcludadinlheumrh;mtoﬂhcupu:ﬁmwhmdﬂﬂuﬁnhgﬂw
gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in this circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the disposed
operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Contracts backlog
Cmmubmklogmﬁradmltelrmmm:iuononiniliﬂmognj&on.Cmmublcklngacquhdinbuinm
combination have a finite useful life mdmwrhdnmhuumuhldmuﬁuﬁmmdmuhmmm
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of Contracts backlog over their
estimated useful lives (3 years).

Thcmndunmmﬂwbnﬂoghmﬁwednwhmm»mwmmnmmﬁuﬁm
nfimplimml.Hmymchiﬁhﬁonuhgmhnphmgmmummiudhmﬂmudnmdmmfm
being the difference between carrying value and the asset’s recoverable amount.

Leasehold right
Leasehold right acquired is measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, leasehold rights are
carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Leasehold right is amortised over their useful economic life (30 years) and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
mmmmwmmyuwmwﬂmmmmmw&rmm
rightilmvi:wadulun:tuchfnminlyurmd.changeuinthu:xpectndnnfullifeurthcnpecmdplmof
mmmptiunﬂfﬁmnumichmfmembodhdinﬂwmhmwmmdforhyclmgmgmcmmﬁuﬁmp@ﬁodor
mﬂhn&umﬁam.mdntumduWhmh;mﬁmnm.ﬁamﬂMnmmmwﬂgM
is recognised in the consolidated statement of income.

Gﬁwlmuﬁhgﬁmdwmgﬂ&mduhghﬂﬁghmmuﬁu&edi&mmbﬂmmmw
pmeeed:mdthecmyhgmnmﬂhnﬁshtndmmgﬂwdﬁz&umﬁdﬂdmmofh:mwhmum
is :

License
MMWEWMMMﬁMWﬁMMWmmbWMMMWI
ﬁniumﬂlﬁﬁwmwﬁdumlmumﬂnwdmuﬁﬂﬁmmdmmhwdwmmm
iau]cnhtndusingthemighllhemuhodmaﬂmumlhemnﬂicmeamlhthwﬁmnhimfullimﬂﬂ years).

Themyhgmmﬂﬂmuhmhdmmhmﬁngdﬂahdﬂamh:%ﬂmhnyhﬂimﬁmaf
impacirmmt.Ifmymhhdicaﬁmmim,mimp-hmmtlouilmogﬁudimhtmoﬁdatndmtoﬁnmmu.bdng
the difference between carrying value and the asset’s recoverable amount.

Software
Suhmmnhdmﬂbhmmdﬂmﬂmhﬁﬂmgﬁﬁmm»ﬂwmm&iwuuﬁﬂﬂcmdhm
at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is calculated using straight line method to allocate the cost of software over its estimated useful life of 3
m.mmmnlmﬂwunismedmdadjmmdfuwmmtwbﬂmummuindiutionthntitml}'
be impaired.
Fwﬂwpmmufmﬁigimpﬁmmnmmgxwpedndnlowmlwdsﬁnwhichﬂmu:supumlyidmﬁlhble
cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2020

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs, The carrying amount includes the cost of
replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met; and
excludes the costs of day to day servicing of an investment property.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment. The estimated life of the buildings is 40 years and is depreciated on a straight-line basis. Land on which the
property is constructed is not depreciated.

Immmtpmpuﬁumduecognhudwhmeithwdwhnwbemdispomuforwhmﬂluinvumnmmmis
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal, The difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in the consolidated statement of income in

the period of derecognition.

Tmfu:mm:deﬂorﬁmninvmmtpmpatymlywhmthmiuchmgeinm. For a transfer from investment
pmpmytonwnerocm:piodprupa‘ty,lh:dmedmstfurmbuqumtmmmﬁngisthecostatthudntenfchmgcinum

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset
or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount,

lnmingvﬂucinunr.-,dumimnmlfutmcnshﬂmmdi:munmdmtheirpmentvﬂucusingndimumm:mﬂ
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the assel. In determining fair value
less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account, If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication
that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group
estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor
exceed the carrying amount that would have been delermined,netordq:minﬁnn.hndmimpairmmtlmbmrewmﬁwd
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the consolidated statement of income unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as at the reporting date and when circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUS) to which
ﬂ:esnodwiﬂmhtu.WhmtherecovmblelmnuntoftheCGUhlmsﬂuuihcmyingmunt,mimpnirmmtlunil
mopheilmpnﬁmmthmmhﬁngmgoodwﬂlmnmhmmmﬁlmmm.

Cash and short-term deposits
Cash and short-term deposits in the consolidated statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less and subject to insignificant risk change in value.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, bank balances and
short-term deposits, as defined above.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, Cost includes the purchase price, import duties,
transportation, handling and other direct costs. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale,
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25 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair vahue. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or issue of financial liabilities (other than on financial assets and financial
liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
Habﬂiﬁos,uappmpﬁate,cniniﬁa]mpiﬁmemuﬁmemﬁwﬂymhmbhhhmmﬂﬁm of financial assets
or issue financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in consolidated statement of
income,

Financial assets
Aﬂmgula:mypumhamorsalasufﬁnmﬁﬂmtsmmognﬂadami&uwogniwﬂonalndedatehsis.llm]umy
pumhasesarsnlmmpmhmmsﬂesufﬁnmcinlmdmmqu&tddmofmmmlhctineﬁmmahli:hd
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

A!lrwo;nisedfmiﬂasmmmhsequmﬂymmmdmthei:mﬂyndﬂmmaﬁmdmw&hw.]ue,depmdim
on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost

Finam:ialassetssuchasmmmmﬂvahle,mnmtmﬁommmmmdc&ahmdmhcqummumwm

following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

» the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contraciual cash flows; and

b Mthwmsof&sﬁmchlmﬂgiveﬁwmspeﬁﬁed:hﬁmmmmmmso]elypaymentsofm‘inctpnl
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Al other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss except for equity instruments when
the Group may make an irrevocable election/designation at initial recognition to recognize fair value in other comprehensive
income.

Amortised cost and effective interest method
Theeﬂ'uﬁveintummﬂhodisumnthodufcdcﬂnﬁnamemmﬁsedmunfadehthmmmmdofﬂouﬁngimuﬁt
income over the relevant period.

For financial instruments at amortised cost, the effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
mndpts{i:nch:dingu]]t'eesmdpuinupuidormcei\rodanmmhmpmn[meeﬁmﬁveknmm,mm
mmmmudﬁmmts)mhﬁngmpecﬁwﬂtlmthmughﬂuexpmmdﬁfcuflkdehm
m,mmnmmmmemmmormmmmeﬁm

Thcnmor&sadmstnfnﬁnmcin]mztiaﬂwamnuntutwhichﬂmﬁnmciu]nnsetismmuedatiniﬁnlmogniﬁmminusﬂn
mmymmpmmemmummmmﬁmmhgthceﬂbcﬁw interest method of any difference between that
iniﬁu]mm;adﬂwmm@mum,udjumdfmmylossa]lowme.Onrhnoﬂm-hmd.thegmmuuyin;mmmfa
ﬁmmhlmisﬂnmmﬁmdcmduﬁnmcinlmbefmndjusﬁngforanylmaﬂome.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for debt instruments measured subsequently at amortised
cost. Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
moq:tfuﬁmcialammmhwuubuqmnﬂybmomumdﬂhnpaimd.Fnrﬁnmcialmmﬂnthwcmbmqumdybem
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
mtlﬂmﬂh&eqmtruporﬁngpuiods,thccmditmkmthemadﬁ-impahedﬁmndﬂ instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Financial assets at FYOCI

On initial recognition, the Group may make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate

investments in equity instruments as at FVOCI, Designation at FVOCI is not permitted if the equity investment is held
for trading or if it is contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which IFRS 3
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVOCI (continued)

Investments in equity instruments al FVOC] are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, Subsequently, they
are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the cumulative changes in fair values reserve. The cumulative gain or loss will not be
reclassified to consolidated statement of income on disposal of the equity investments, instead, they will be transferred to
retained earnings.

The Group has designated all investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading as at FVOCI on initial
application of IFRS 9,

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in consolidated statement of income when the
Group's right to receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost
of the investment.

Impairment of financial assets
Tthmupmosnimalmmomufmexpemndcrditbmonﬁmmhlmuﬂmmmmmﬁntumortiscdcom.
No impairment loss is recognised for equity instruments that are classified as financial assets at FVOCI, The amount of

expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date,

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables which generally do not have a significant financing
component. The expected credit losses on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both mequmnluweﬂuthcfmcmdﬁwﬁmofmndiﬁommthereportin,gdar.e,includingtime
vaiue of money where appropriate. Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a trade receivables.

Credit-impaired financial assets at amortised cost
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events, constituting an event of default for internal credit risk
management purposes as historical experience indicates, that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of that financial asset have occurred that meet below criteria. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

b significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

» abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event:

b the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,

having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;
» it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or
»  the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off of financial assets at amortised cost

The Group writes off a financial asset at amortised cost when there is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate, Any recoveries
made are recognised in consolidated statement of income.

Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude
of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information as described above. As for the exposure at
default, for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the reporting date,

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due
to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate,

The Group recognises an impairment loss in consolidated statement of income for all financial assets at amortised cost
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.
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25 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition
mamupduecosnim:ﬁ:miﬂumwhmlheomuutulrighumrhemhﬂuw:framﬂ:oﬁnmialmmexpim.ur
itmfmtheﬁmwmdwthnmmmmnomhnuwwﬁm[nwhichsuhstmﬁauyaunfthaﬁshmd
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

Any cumulative gain/loss recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of equity investment securities designated
qu-‘VDCIiImmhmlﬂnwﬂmmﬁmmmmmiﬁmofmhmﬁﬁn. Any interest in
transferred financial assets that qualify for derecognition that is created or retained by the Group is recognised as a separate
asset or liability.

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Group evaluates whether the cash flows of the modified asset are
submﬁnllydiﬂ'umtlfdncmhﬂummm}ydiﬁumglhmﬂmomtmcmalﬁghfswcuhﬂomﬁ'omlln
originalﬁnmcidmﬁmdeumdmhwexpﬁnihﬁhm,theoﬁghﬂﬁmmiﬂuﬁhdmpﬁudmdamw
financial asset is recognised at fair value.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The Group's financial liabilities include bank overdrafts, accounts payable and accruals and bank borrowings (term loans,
murabaha payable and tawaruq payable).

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as described below:

Term loan

Term loan is carried on the consolidated statement of financial position at their principal amount, Instalments due within
one year are shown as current liabilities. Interest is charged as an expense as it accrues, with unpaid amounts included in
accounts payable and accruals.

Accounts payable and accruals
Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether billed by the supplier
or not,

Derecognition
Awmummumummummu&wmmmmm
Whmmniﬂhahmhlﬁﬂﬂhhmphodbynuﬂmﬁomhmhnhmmhﬂﬁnﬂyﬁﬁuuﬂhmgwhm
of an existing Ihbﬂhymmhmﬁﬂbmo&ﬁe&nwhmmmmndiﬁuﬁmhmnldnwﬁmoﬁh
uiﬁnﬂﬁlﬁ&ynd&amniﬂmdnmwliﬁhy,ndﬂwﬁﬂumhlhwﬁwmmmhmh
the consolidated statement of income.

Fair values of financial instruments
Fnirnlmhtheplioed-lmldbem:ivedmuﬂmmuuidmumﬁu-llhbﬂhyhmwddymmﬁmbﬂmm
mmﬂﬁcbmullmemmm&kvﬂmmuhhadmmemmpﬁmmmwm
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- hmm&:mmamomdmmmlﬂmfwhmormty

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Group.

Theﬁirvﬂuufmnﬂalﬁlbiﬁqilmmmdmhuﬂtempﬁomlhﬂmkﬂpuﬁcimwonldmwhmpﬁciq
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
mmmmummmmmmwmommmwhmu

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position
cmhmmﬂhdmmmmhmmwhhuvmnmmdmmﬁmwmw
including the DCF model and price to book model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could
affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 24 for further disclosures.
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25 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair values of financial instruments (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

» Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

» Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

»  Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and HMﬁuMmm@sﬁhﬁeﬁmddMaunnmrﬁngbaﬂademupdeMmhmwm
umsfmshavcmndbctwem[gvclsinmehjmmhybyr&asm categorization (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to dmﬁirvaluemmwmnmtasnwholn)atthcmdofmhrqmningpwiod.

An analysis of fair value of financial instruments and further details as to how they are measured are provided in note 23.

Fair value of investments properties

The determination of fair value of investment properties requires the use of estimates such as future cash flows from assets
(such as lettings, tenants’ profiles, future revenue stream, capital value of fixtures and fittings, plant and machinery, any
environmental matters and the overall repair and condition of the property) and discount rates applicable to those assets. In
additions, development risks (such as construction and letting risks) are also taken consideration when determining the fair
value of investment properties under construction. These estimates are based on local market conditions existing at reporting
date.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Treasury shares

Treasury shares consist of the Parent Company’s own issued shares that have been reacquired by the Group and not yet
reissued or cancelled. The treasury shares are accounted for using the cost method. Under this method, the weighted
average cost of the shares reacquired is charged to a contra account in equity. When the treasury shares are reissued, gains
are credited to a separate account in equity, “treasury shares reserve”, which is not distributable. Any realised losses are
charged to the same account to the extent of the credit balance on that account, Any excess losses are charged to retained
earnings and then to the statutory and voluntary reserves. Gains realised subsequently on the sale of treasury shares are
first used to offset any previously recorded losses in the order of reserves, retained earnings and the treasury shares reserve
account. No cash dividends are paid on these shares. The issue of stock dividend increases the mumber of treasury shares
proportionately and reduces the average cost per share without affecting the total cost of treasury shares.

Leases

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make Jease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right
to use the underlying assets.

i Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at, or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated usefl lives of
the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.,

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in impairment of non-financial assets,
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

i) Lease liabilities
Atﬂ:ctdutnuftb:lnsa.ﬂ:eGmpmmmimlmmﬁ]iﬁumaumd#mpmm?ﬂuofhupammm
1o be made over the leasc term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
hueincmﬁmmeiuble.wmb[emmmmmmmdupmdonmindcxurame,mdmumnpectedtobepﬁdmdm
residunlnlucgwm'l'heluaepnymmmalmhmhndethcexmiwprbeufapmhmupﬁunmmhlymhmbe
uadmdbyﬂ:&wpmdmymmﬂofpmﬂﬁufnrmimﬁngﬂulm,ifthc]anulmmmﬂu:tsthcﬁroupexmish:g
meuptimntmninne.Vﬂiﬂblchﬂsepqmmuﬂmdunmdcpmdanmindmonmmmmpimduexpmus(uu]m
ﬂw}'minnumdtopﬁx!uceinvmtmim}inlhepmiodh:whichﬂmwmtormndiﬁcnthntﬁggmthepn}mmtmmm.ln
l:ulculmlheprmmtvﬂueoflmupuymmm.&wﬁmxpumiuimmmmlbonomgnhatﬂmlmummmcemmt
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
hmﬁlhﬁﬁuhhuuudmmﬂmlﬂmmeﬁmufmmdmdwodfmhluummmmmnde.[naddiﬁun,the
mmdlmwﬁﬁmhwifmmamodiﬁuﬁmadmﬂnﬂmleasem,nclmgcinthnhasc
payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease
payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term
ﬂl!mﬁsmhﬁmhmmdﬂcmddumtmﬁhapumhu:opﬁm}. It also applies the lease of low-
mmmﬁmmﬁmMMohﬁmn@mmtmnmmﬂuedmbehwvﬂmLuupnmmtson
shmﬁumhmmdimsuflunwﬂucmmmmmhuduﬂpmmmamﬂgm-lmcbmis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor
Iﬂmhwh:ichthe("nuq:rdoesnottlusfermbsunﬁallyaﬂthz&nksandrmwﬁﬂidcnﬁlmawmhipnfanusetm
classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is
included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating leasc are added (o the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on
the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are camed.

Employees’ end of service benefits

The Group provides end of service benefits to its employees under the Kuwait Labour Law. The entitlement to these
benefits is based upon the employees’ final salary and length of service, subject to the completion of a minimum service
pabd,ﬁeupmdmafmmbmeﬁummmmdmlhepcﬁnd of employment.

In addition to the above, with respect to its Kuwaiti national employees, the Group also makes contributions to Public
Institution for Social Security scheme, calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries. The Group's obligations are
limited to these contributions, which are expensed when due.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it earns revenues
mdincummm.mWﬁngugmmnmusedbymummquﬂmemwﬂhcmrmummmdm
performance is consistent with the internal reports provided to the chief executive operation and the board of directors.
Operating segments exhibiting similar economic characteristics, product and services, class of customers where

appropriate are aggregated and reported as reportable segments.

Foreign currencies
The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in KD, which is also the Parent Company’s functional
currency. For each entity, the Group determines the functional currency and items included in the financial statements of
cach entity are measured using that functional currency. The Group uses the direct method of consolidation and has elected
to recycle the gain or loss that arises from using this method.
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15 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

i) Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group's entities at their respective functional currency spot
rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition,

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of
exchange at the reporting date,

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the consolidated statement of income
with the exception of monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Group's net investment of a foreign
operation. These are recognised in other comprehensive income until the net investment is disposed of, at which time, the
cumulative amount is reclassified to the consolidated statement of income.

Nm—mmmilmnthmmundintmmsnfhimﬂcnlcmtinnruui;nmmcymmllnudulingih:uchuge
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rutuatﬂwduowhmlhufnirvalueisdetnmhod.Theguinor]maﬁ;inaonmshﬁmofm—
moneuj.-immusundatfnirvalmislrcmdinlhmwithtlwrecomitionofgninorhuunchmsemfti:rn]ueufthe
item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
the consolidated statement of income,

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilitics arising on the acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at
the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date.

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements but are disclosed unless the possibility of
an outflow of resourccs embodying economic benefits is remote,

Events after the period

If the Group receives information after the reporting period, but prior to the date of authorisation for issue, about conditions
that existed at the end of the reporting period, the Group will assess if the information affects the amounts that it recognises
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements. The Group will adjust the amounts recognised in its consolidated financial
statements to reflect any adjusting events after the reporting period and update the disclosures that relate 1o those conditions
inlhclightnfﬂmncwhfmmnﬁmemadjuﬂhgwmﬂa&«thnmpmhgpﬁMﬂuerpuﬁﬂmmhmhmnn
recognised in its consolidated financial statements but will disclose the nature of the non-adjusting event and an estimate of
its financial effect, or a statement that such an estimate cannot be made, if applicable.

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards
mpﬁummgumnlmmhjudgmmta.mimutuandaasummimthuaﬂ'mtﬂmmpmedmmumufmm
ﬁabﬂiﬁen:nddiwlommofmﬁngentmmdﬁnbﬂiﬁmatthsreporﬁngdatemdﬂnmpmtedmmmofmmd
expmdwh;lhempaﬁngpuioiﬁmdrmlucmlddiﬂer&amthnsauﬁmms.ThaGmnphnusedjudmmmd
estimates principally in, but not limited to, the following:

Valuation of unguoted invesiments
Valuation of unquoted equity securities is normally based on one of the following:

Recent arm’s length market transactions;

Current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same;

Eamings multiples,

Price to book multiples;

The expected cash flows discounted at current rates applicable for items with similar terms and risk characteristics;
Underlying net asset base of the investment; or

Other valuation models

The determination of the cash flows, eamings multiples, price to book multiples and discount factors for unquoted equity
securities requires significant estimation.

W W W W OWw w
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

Impairment of trade receivables

An estimate of the m!]wﬁblemmmofﬂademmﬁmﬁvabhismadcwhmmﬂmﬁmofﬂmﬂlllmmlismlmger
probable. For individually significant amounts, this estimation is performed on an individual basis. Amounts which are
natindividmllysigniﬁmt,huwhichmpmdue,m&medmﬂwﬁvclymﬂammapphedmordjngmms
length of time past due, based on historical recovery rates.

Impairment of financial asseis at amortised cosi

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The
Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the
Gmup’spa:sthislm‘y,misﬁngmﬂkﬂﬂmdiﬁmsmweﬂasfﬂmrdlmkingcdimlmmﬂneniufumhmpmﬁngpuiod

Impairment of inventories
MVmﬂmdeﬂﬁchwaﬂMMmmﬁuhhmmmmoumohmlmmm
made of their net realisable value. For individually significant amounts this estimation is performed on an individual basis.
Anmmﬁmﬁchmmhﬁﬁﬁmﬂyﬂmﬁm;hn%mnﬁuobmlﬁqmmmdmﬂmﬁw&ynﬂapmﬁﬁm
mpﬁﬂWmﬁeMmﬂh&gudWw&mMMMMﬂ!mﬂmm

Impairment of non-financial assets

An asset is impaired if its carrying amount exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset
is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and value in use. Net selling price is the amount obtainable from the sale of an
asset in an arm’s length transaction. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from
the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. An assessment is made at each statement
afﬁmchlpﬂ&iﬁmdmmdmﬂwhahaﬁﬂeiswmmﬂmmehcmhﬁ.Ifmchevidmc.c
exists, any impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of income.

Impairment of property and egquipment

A decline in the value of property and equipment could have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the {inancial
statements. Mmagmmtamﬁehnpa&meﬂofmmdqﬁpmmlwhmwwnmmchﬂngﬁhcmm
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

memmmmm:mmmmmmmmmmwmc
» ﬁguiﬁcmldmlhnhﬁemkﬁﬂhmbewﬁ&ﬂwhkhwuﬁbemﬂdﬁumﬂmmﬁufﬁmcmmmﬂ

use;

» significant changes in the technology and regulatory environments; and

J :ﬁ&mﬁmmmmﬁgwﬁmmmmmmo{mwmmmu,m
than expected.

Useful lives of property and equipment
Th:ﬁrmm'smmagmmtdﬁﬂmmm:m;mduufdﬁmofﬂsemﬁpmmfwmkuhﬁng depreciation. This
estimate is determined aﬂ:rmﬁuhg&:upmudungeofﬁemmphyﬁm]wmmdm.mmmtmhm
the residual value and useful lives annually and future depreciation charge would be adjusted where the management
believes the useful lives differ from previous estimates.

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets with finite and indefinite useful life

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that an intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful
Iifem&wmnﬁndplﬁﬂuofumnnpﬁmoﬁnﬂmwmmicbmeﬁuembodindhthemis:mmadforbychanghg
Mmmmmmmummwmmuwmmmmmm
mpmseoninungfblemwiﬂlﬁ:ﬁnMbm@hhmﬁhﬂmﬁmmeuhﬂmm
that is consistent with the function of the intangible assets.

The Group determines whether goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful life are impaired at least on an annual
basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units. Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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q NET INVESTMENT INCOME
2020 2019
KD KD

Interest income 295,824 379,921
Unrealised (loss) gain from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (112,886) 820,687
Dividend income 794,905 595,505
Realized gain on sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 357,542 53,174

1,335,385 1,849 287
5 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit for the year by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the year (excluding treasury shares). Diluted carings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit for the year by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year (excluding treasury
shares) plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive
potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. The Parent Company did not have any diluted shares as at 31 December,
The information necessary to calculate basic and diluted eamings per share based on the weighted average number of
shares outstanding, less treasury shares, during the year is as follows:

2020 2049
Profit for the year (KD) 2,608,175 3,457,045
wwmmmmﬁmmmmmum(m
treasury shares) 404,443,880 400,991,834
Basic and diluted earnings per share 6.45 fils 8.62 fils
6 CASH, BANK BALANCES AND TERM DEPOSITS

Cash, bank balances and term deposits included in the consolidated statement of cash flows include the following
consolidated statement of financial position amounts:

2020 2019
KD KD
Cash 5,772 2,573
Bank balances 4,187,150 4,261,624
Term deposits 11,283,479 10,000,000
15,476,401 14,264,197
Term deposits (maturity after 3 months from placement date) (10,533,479)  (9,150,000)

4,942,922 5,114,197

Term deposits are placed with local banks denominated in KD and carry an effective interest rate of 1.50% (2019: 2.55%)
per annum,

7 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND PREPAYMENTS
2020 2019
KD KD
Trade receivables, net 1,679,700 2,526,145
Advance payment, net 822,758 1,281,944
Prepaid expenses 101,668 117,293
Other receivables, net 575,824 341,466

3,179,950 4,266,848
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7 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)
Movements in the allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables were as follows:

2020 2019
KD KD
Opening balance 2,743,969 2,300,008
Charge for the year based on lifetime ECL 29,219 443,961
2,773,188 2,743,969

As at 31 December 2020, trade receivables of KD 2,773,188 (2019: KD 2,743,969) were impaired and fully provided for.
As at 31 December 2020, advance payment of KD 80,750 (2019: KD Nil) were impaired and fully provided for,
As at 31 December 2020, Other receivables of KD 299,144 (2019: KD 47,717) were impaired and fully provided for.

Trade receivables aging and the expected credit loss are disclosed in Note 20.
8 INVESTMENT SECURITIES

2020 2019

KD KD
Managed portfolio (local quoted equity securities) 13,410,130 18,915,954
Managed portfolio (local unquoted equity securities) 9,777,566 11,668,651
Local unquoted equity securities 1,074,167 3,676,937
24,261,863 34,261,542

As at 31 December 2020, investment securities amounting to KD 14,260,430 (2019: KD 16,264,704) are managed by a

related party (Note 18),

As at 31 December 2020, investment securities of KD 7,535,255 (2019: KD 15,101,256) are in related party entities (Note

18).

Hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair values of financial instruments by valuation technique are presented in

Note 23,
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Al Soor Fuel Marketing Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 31 December 2020
11 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Freehold land Buildings Total
KD KD KD

Cost:

At 1 January 2020 3,474,033 1,404,336 4,878,369
At 31 December 2020 3,474,033 1,404,336 4,878,369
Depreciation:

At 1 January 2020 - 369,286 369,286
Charge for the year - 41,357 41,357
At 31 December 2020 . 410,643 410,643
Impairment;

At | January 2020 : . .
Charge for the year . 390,242 390,242
At 31 December 2020 - 300,242 390,242
Net carrying amount:

At 31 December 2020 3,474,033 603,451 4,077,484
Cost:

At 1 January 2019 3,474,033 1,404,336 4,878,369
At 31 December 2019 3,474,033 1,404,336 4,878,369
Depreciation:

At 1 January 2019 - 327928 327928
Charge for the year - 41,358 41,358
At 31 December 2019 - 369,286 369,286
Net carrying amount:

At 31 December 2019 3,474,033 1,035,050 4,509,083

As at 31 December 2020, the fair value of the investment properties amounted to KD 5,004,000 (2019: KD 5,640,000),
accordingly, an impairment loss of KD 390,242 (2019: Nil) has been recorded in the consolidated statement of statement
of income against certain investment properties.

The fair value of the investment properties has been determined based on valuations obtained from two independent
valuers, who are an industry specialised in valuing these types of investment properties, one of these valuers is a local
bank.

Both valuators have used the following method:
. Wmmmmhomhmmmmmmmmmﬁmm
assuming full capacity of the property.

MthuﬁummniduﬁuMuldeforﬂnﬁirvﬂmanmdmmmmmﬂmm
level 1 and level 2 fair value measurements and no transfer into and out of level 3 fair value measurements,

hvmm]ropuﬁcswithmulmumofmz,ﬁﬂz,m (2019: KD 2,822,284) is registered in the name of a related
party (Note lﬂ),whichomﬁmodhwﬁﬁngﬂimmeﬁmphmthﬂbmﬁchlomxhipofﬂlmpmpaﬁm

F&whmuﬁngﬁ:hme@uﬁmﬁmmhﬁhuﬁmhdhuﬂm&emﬂhdmmmw
byﬂlepmpﬂly.whichkdivﬂedbymeupimﬁsaﬁon(dimuml]uwjigﬂﬁmthum(m}hmm
pumemﬂu,mﬁmhdmﬂnhumﬂmywﬁpumhhuhﬁmwmﬂdrmhhaﬂpiﬁcmﬂyhighu
(lower) fair value on a linear basis, Signiﬁminmmu{dm}inth:hng—mwmmddimtm(md
uityidd)iniwhﬁmmuldmmin:aigniﬁcmﬂylow(highu}ﬁirm.



Al Soor Fuel Marketing Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2020

12 SHARE CAPITAL, CASH DIVIDEND AND BONUS SHARES

Authorised, issued and fully
paid
2020 2019
KD KD

404,707,581 shares (2019: 404,707,581) of 100 fils paid in cash and issue of bonus shares 40,470,758 40,470,758

Cash dividend and Directors’ remuneration

The Annual General Assembly Meeting held on 27 April 2020, did not approve the distribution of cash dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: approved a distribution of 5% cash dividend of the nominal value of shares by 5§
fils per share of KD 2,004,691).

The Annual General Assembly Meeting held on 27 April 2020 did not approve the distribution of directors’ remuneration
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: approved to distribute a directors’ remuneration of KD 55,000), accordingly,
memuﬁlimdmw&mm.mhubmmwommmmﬂyw.

The Board of Directors of the Group has proposed directors’ remuneration of KD 60,000, which is within the amount
puminibleunderlncllmgnhliummdmmbjec(wmwomhynnmul&ﬂinuyﬁmal:usemblyh{utiu of the
Group’s shareholders.

The Board of Directors of the Parent Company has proposed a distribution of 5% cash dividends of the nominal value of
shares, by 5 fils per share for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: 5% cash dividends of the nominal value of shares,
bySﬁlspushum]mdiuubjmlhq:pmvﬂbyﬁnmd&dinuyﬁmenlﬁmbly Meeting of the Parent Company’s
shareholders,

13 STATUTORY RESERVE

In accordance with the Companies’ Law, and the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of
Association, a minimum of 10% of the profit for the year before contribution to KFAS, NLST, Zakat and Directors’
remuneration shall be transferred to the statutory reserve based on the recommendation of the Parent Company’s board
ofd:'recms.Ihemualsﬂ:emlnmblyofthePamnt(bmpmym-ymolvewdimnﬁnuemhmufuwhmthe
rem:xceeds!rﬂ%ofthciﬂmdmrempiml.‘I‘hemewemyonlyheundmufﬁnlammemhlcthepaymmtofn
dividmdupluS%ul‘paid-upuhueq:iulh:}urswhmmﬁtilnotmfﬁniantfmﬂiepaymmlofsuch dividend due to
wmofﬁmmwkmmmumm&meshﬂlbumﬂmdndwhmmeprofmhdm
foﬂuw?nuyunmﬁ'we,unleumhmumduiﬂ%nﬁhuimedepim.

14 VOLUNTARY RESERVE

In accordance with the Companies’ Law, and the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of
Association, a maximum of 10% of the profit for the year before contribution to KFAS, NLST, Zakat and Directors’
mmuﬁm&mfurdmmhmymmmmmmmyofahmhan.upma
recommendation by the Board of Directors, resolve to discontinue such annual transfers.

15 TREASURY SHARES

2020 2019
Number of treasury shares 115,747 3,715,747
Percentage of ownership 0.03% 0.92%
Market value (KD) 14,121 464,468

Reserves equivalent to the cost of the treasury shares held are not available for distribution.
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16 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUALS
2020 2019
KD KD
Trade payables 10,239,907 14,779,684
Accrued expenses 3,626,233 2,382 481
Dividend payables 1,888,997 2,006,113
Advances from customers 1,658,769 1,615,229
17,413,906 20,783,507
Trade payable amounting to KD 9,202,922 (2019: KD 12,814,174) are due 1o a related party (Note 18).
17 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
2020 2019
KD KD
Letters of guarantee 8,318,447 6,107,876
Capital commitments 165,377 512,702

The Group has entered into several lease arrangements, mainly for renting of land over which fuel stations are constructed.

18 RELATED PARTY BALANCES TRANSACTIONS

Related parties represent i.e. major shareholders, associates, directors and key management personnel of the Group, and
entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by such partics, Pricing policies and terms of these

transactions arc approved by the management and board of directors.
Transactions with related parties included in the consolidated statement of income are as follows:

Entities under Major
common control  shareholder
KD KD
2020
Cost of sales (purchase of fuel) - 106,814,888
Operating expenses 60,889 .
Administrative expenses 640,055 -
Entities under Major
commaon control  shareholder
KD KD
2019
Cost of sales (purchase of fuel) . 146,512,843
Operating expenses 399,047 .
ini Ve expenses 730,449
Gain from sale of an associate -

Bﬂmunﬁlhmhudpnﬁuhchﬂdinhmoﬁdmdmdwpwﬁmnufnnom:

Entities under Major
common control  shareholder
KD KD
2020
Accounts receivable and prepayments* 64,365 -
Accounts payable and accruals* 9,202,922 -
Investment securities 7,535,255 -

Total
KD

106,814,888
60,889
640,055

Total
KD

146,512,843

399,047
730,449

Total

64,365
9,202,922
7,535,255
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18 RELATED PARTY BALANCES TRANSACTIONS (continued)
commaon control  shareholder Total
KD KD KD
2019
Accounts receivable and prepayments* 126,762 . 126,762
Accounts payable and accruals* 12,814,174 - 12,814,174
Investment securities 15,101,256 - 15,101,256

Investment properties with a carrying value of KD 2,602,484 (2019: KD 2,822,284) is registered in the name of related
party (Note 11), which confirmed in writing that the Group has the beneficial ownership of those properties.

Investment securities amounting to KI) 14,260,430 (2019; KD 16,264,704) are managed by a related party (Note 8).
* Amounts due to/from entities under common control that are interest free and due within one year from the reporting date.

2020 2019
KD KD
Key management compensation
Short-term benefits 384,350 383,637
Employees’ end of service benefits 32,639 32,639
416,989 416,276

19 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organized into business units based on their products and services, and has two
reportable operating segments as follows:

- Fuel marketing and other related services - represents the sale of fuel and other related services arising from fuel
stations,
Investment operations — represents investment in managed portfolio, shori-term money market placements and real
estate,

Fuel marketing
and other related  Invesiment
services operations Unallocated Total
31 December 2020 KD KD KD KD
Segment revenue 120,946,510 1,825,160 - 122,771,670
Depreciation and amortization 3,233,081 211,474 21,992 3,466,547
Segment results 1,717,456 1,825,160 (934,441) 2,608,175
Fuel marketing
and other related Investment
services aperations Unallocated Total
31 December 2019 KD KD KD KD
Segment revenue 162,645,383 2,184,925 - 164,830,308
Depreciation and amortization 3,489,475 185,798 13,769 3,689,042
Segment results 2,810,365 2,184,925 (1,538,245) 3,457,045

52



Al Soor Fuel Marketing Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2020

19  SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

Fuel marketing
and other related  Investment
services operations Unallocated Total
KD KD KD KD

Segment assets as at 31 December 2020 43,706,652 38,872,826 - 82,579,478
Segment liabilities as at 31 December

2020 17,265,144 148,762 997,780 18,411,686
Seement assets as at 31 December 2019 44.608.240 48.770.625 - 93.378.865
Segment liabilities as at 31 December

2019 20,599,608 - 7,116,268 27,715,876
Other disclosures as at 31 December 2020
Capital expenditure 2,855,015 - - 2,855,015
Investment securities - 8,204,757 - 8,204,757
Other disclosures as at 31 December 2019
Capital expenditure 4,089,091 - - 4,089,091
Investment securities - 5,917,784 - 5,917,784

20 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Riskisinhemninﬂ:u:Gmup‘sacﬁviﬁcahutitismmagedﬂmughaprmmnfnngnirg identification, measurement and

monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This
responsibilities. The Group is exposed to credit risk, li
does not include business risks such as changes
monitor those business risks through Group’s strategic planning proc
objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31 December 2

20.1 Credit risk

in the environment,

process of risk management is critical to the Group's continuing

is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her
quidity risk and market risk. The independent risk control process
technology and industry. The Group's policy is to
No changes were made in the risk management
020 and 2019.

Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument leading to a financial
loss. Financial assets subject to credit risk consist principally of bank balances, fixed deposits and accounts receivable.

The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties. The Group’s
monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is

Maximum exposure to credit risk

exposure are continuously
spread amongst approved counterparties.

The Group's exposure 1o credit risk from bank balances, fixed deposits and accounts receivable arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments, Where financial instruments

are recorded at fair value, it represents the current maximum credit risk ex

posure but not the maximum risk exposure that

nouldn‘iuinl;hr.ﬁmwulruultofchan;minu]uu.nemaximumuxpmreinhucm-yingmmntudmn‘bodin

the consolidated statement of financial position.

Thcmhnmupmmwmeditﬁskntﬂwmponingdmmu:

2020

2019

KD KD
Cash, bank balances and term deposits 15,476,401 14,264,197
Trade and other receivables 2,255,524 2,867,611
17,731,925 17,131,808
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20 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

20.1  Credit risk

Risk concentration of maximum exposure to credit risk

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same
geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be
similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity
of the Group's performance to developments affecting a particular industry or geographic location,

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries. Ongoing credit evaluation is
performed on the financial condition of accounts receivable. Concentration of credit risk is represented by one major
customer representing 35% (2019: 24%) of the trade receivables balance,

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

Trade receivables
31 December 2020 Days past due
More than
0-90 days 91-180 days 180 -270 days 270 days Total
KD KD KD KD KD
Estimated total gross carrying amount at
default 2,046,219 790,940 70,335 1,545,394 4,452,888
Estimated credit loss 366,519 790,940 70,335 1,545,394 2,773,188
Expected credit loss rate 18% 100% 100% 100%

Trade receivables

31 December 2019 Days past due

More than 270 Total
0-90 days 91-180 days 180 -270 days days
KD KD KD KD KD
Estimated total gross carrying amount at

default 2,521,567 916,576 439,231 1,392,740 5,270,114
Estimated credit loss - 911,998 439,231 1,392,740 2,743,969
FExpected credit loss rate - 99.5% 100% 100%

20.2  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with
financial instruments. To manage this risk, the Group periodically assess the financial viability of the receivables and ensures
that adequate bank facilities are available,

The management has built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Group's short
and medium funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
cash and cash equivalents and by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity
profiles of financial assets.

All the financial liabilities of the Group are due within one year from the consolidated statement of financial position
date,
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20 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

202 Liquidity risk (continued)
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilitics based on contractual undiscounted
payments:

Within Jio 12
3 months months Total
KD KD KD
2020
Accounts payable and accruals (excluding advances from customers) 12,128,904 3,626,233 15,755,137
12,128,904 3,626,233 15,755,137
Within 3012
3 months months Total
KD KD KD
2019
Accounts payable and accruals (exchuding advances from customers) 16,785,797 2,382,481 19,168,278
16,785,797 2,382,481 19,168,278

20.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
inm:rketpricu.Mmketliakmpri.lunffud;nammcyﬁsk.inmmmerhkmdeqmtypdmﬁsk.Thnmiﬁvity
analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 December in 2020 and 2019,

20.3.1 Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily
to the Group's operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a different currency from the Group's
presentation currency).

At the reporting date, the Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as majority of the assets and liabilities are
denominated in Kuwaiti Dinars.

20.3.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate nisk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to
the Company's term loan obligation with fixed interest rates.

Tthroupiuxpomdtointnmmrinkmi:sint:rm—hmingmlndlinhﬂiﬁm(ahoﬂwmdcpouit,term[oa.n}.

The sensitivity of the consolidated statement of income is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on the Group’s
profit, based on fixed interest rates and financial liabilities held at 31 December. The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity of the consolidated statement of income to reasonably possible changes in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant.

Effect on profit
Increase Jor the year
in basis points KD
2020 +100 112,835
2019 +100 40,000

20.3.3 Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equities decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices
and the value of individual stocks. The Group is exposed 1o equity price risk on its quoted investment securities. The
Group manages this risk through diversification of investments in terms of industry concentration.
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20 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES {continued)
20.3  Market risk (continued)
2033 Equity price risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the consolidated statement of income to reasonably possible changes
inequity prices, with all other variables held constant,

Market indices Increase/decrease Effect on Effect on profit
ocI

in stock prices Jor the year
%4) KD KD
2020
Investment securities Kuwait +5 4 595,682 + 35,050
Market indices Increase/decrease  Effect on Effect on profit
in stock prices ocI for the year
(%a) KD KD
2019
Investment securities Kuwait x5 + 167,525 = 387,289
21 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, or issue new shares,
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

Capital comprises of share capital, statutory reserve, voluntary reserve, treasury shares, cumulative change in fair value
reserve and retained earnings and is measured at KD 64,167,792 as at 31 December 2020 (2019: KD 65,662,989).

22 MATURITY ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s assets and liabilities. The maturity profile of, accounts
receivable and prepayments, accounts payable and accruals at the year-end is based on contractual repayment
arrangements. The maturity profile for the remaining assets and liabilities is determined based on the management
estimate of liquidation of those assets,

Within Jwi2 Ito§

3 months months years Total
31 December 2020 KD KD KD KD
Assets
Cash, bank balances and term deposits 4942922 10,533,479 - 15,476,401
Accounts receivable and prepayments - 3,179,950 - 3,179,950
Inventories - 805,235 - 805,235
Investment securities - 2,464,172 21,797,691 24,261,863
Property and equipment - - 22,151,775 22,151,775
Intangible assets - - 12,626,770 12,626,770
Investment properties - - 4,077,484 4,077,484
TOTAL ASSETS 4,942,922 16,982,836 60,653,720 82,579478
Liabilities
Employees end of service benefits - . 997,780 997,780
Accounts payable and accruals 12,128,904 5,285,002 - 17,413,906
TOTAL LIABILITIES 12,128,904 5,285,002 997,780 18,411,686
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12 MATURITY ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

Within o 12 lto5

I months months years Total
31 December 2019 KD KD KD KD
Assets
Cash, bank balances and term deposits 5,114,197 9,150,000 . 14,264,197
Accounts receivable and prepayments - 4,266,848 - 4,266,848
Inventorics - 728,475 - 728,475
Investment securities 14,319,901 19,941,641 34,261,542
Property and equipment - - 23,611,585 23,611,585
Intangible assets - - 11,737,135 11,737,135
Investment properties . - 4,509,083 4,509,083
TOTAL ASSETS 5,114,197 28465224 59,799,444 93,378,865
Liabilities
Term loan - 6,000,000 - 6,000,000
Employees end of service benefits - - 932,369 932,369
Accounts payable and accruals 16,785,798 3,997,709 - 20,783,507
TOTAL LIABILITIES 16,785,798 9,997,709 932,369 27,715,876

13 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial instruments comprise of financial assets and financial liabilities.

Financial assets consist of investment securities, accounts receivable, cash, bank balances and term deposits, Financial
liabilities consist of accounts payable and accruals and term loans.

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair values of financial instruments by
valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in an active market for identical assets and liabilities;

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable,
either directly or indirectly;

Level 3: other techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are not based on
observable market data.

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy:

Level 1 Level 3 Total
2020 KD KD KD
Investment securities
Managed portfolio (local quoted equity securities) 13,410,130 - 13,410,130
Managed portfolio (local unquoted equity securities) - 9,777,566 9,777,566
Local unquoted securitics - 1,074,167 1,074,167
13,410,130 10,851,733 24,261,863
Level | Level 3 Total
2019 KD KD KD
Investment securities
Managed portfolio (local quoted equity securities) 18,915,954 . 18,915,954
Managed portfolio (local unquoted equity securities) - 11,668,651 11,668,651
Local unquoted securities - 3,676,937 3,676,937

18,915,954 15,345,588 34,261,542
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23 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The following table shows a reconciliation of the opening and closing amount of level 3 financial assets which are recorded
at fair value,

Gain (loss)
Asat  recorded in other Gain recorded Net purchases, Reclassed under As at
1 January comprehensive in (sales) and managed 31 Decembe
2020 income profitor loss  settlements portfolio 2020
2020 KD KD KD KD KD KD
Investment securities
Managed portfolio (local
unquoted equity
securities) 11,668,651 279,697 32,336 (2,783,926) 580,808 9,777,566
Local unquoted securities 3,676,937 (2,021,962) - - (580,808) 1,074,167
Loss recorded
As ar in other Net purchases, As at
! January  comprehensive  (sales) and Transfer to 31 Decembei
2019 income seftlements Level 1 2019
2019 KD KD KD KD KD
Investment securities
Managed portfolio (local unquoted equity
securities) 14,187,550 (3,381,987 863,088 - 11,668,651
Local unquoted securities 3,789,343 (112,406) : - 3,676,937

The Group has performed a sensitivity analysis to the range of significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value
measurements during the period. Based on such analysis, there is no material impact on consolidated financial statements,

Sct out below are the significant unobservable inputs to valuation of the non-listed equity investments as at 31 December
2020:

Significant unobservable valuation inputs Range Sensitivity of the input to fair value
2% increase / (decrease) in the Sector PBV
multiple would result in an increase /
(decrease) in fair value by
Sector PBV multiple 0.43-1.09 KD 201,569.
2% increase (decrease) in the discount would
decrease (increase) the fair value by KD
Discount for lack of marketability (DLOM) 20% 286,076.

Th:discmmtfarluckofmnrkmbﬂitymprumtsﬂ:emmmulhmmnﬁmuphudmmlmdthumukﬂpmiﬁpmu
would take into account when pricing the investments,
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24 IMPACT OF COVID-19 OUTBREAK

Coronavirus pandemic (COVID-19), which began to spread by the beginning of 2020 and witnessed a rise in the number
of cases in most countries worldwide, including Kuwait, has negatively impacted most businesses and economics in
addition to its impact on the sharp drop in the global oil prices, which in general, tend to affect the economic growth
heavily. In the absence of a specific treatment for this virus, it is difficult to predict the period of closure for some
businesses, the partial curfews and the suspension of flights that were recommended by the governmental bodies in
Kuwait and most of the countries worldwide.

Gimﬁupuﬁmwlaﬁ]imhmﬂtmdﬁ:ﬁmnfdlmMmdmmmiuﬁ'mummnimmuuinmddmda
on future developments that currently cannot be quantified accurately. These developments include the rate at which
coronavirus is transmitted, the extent and effectiveness of containments, the movement in product prices, demand, and
the overall pace of the global economies’ movement. Accordingly, the economic and commercial impacts on the Group's
operations cannot be reliably assessed until the date of issuance of these consolidated financial statements. In this context
m&mmmmm1mmywwmmmmmmmmm
should be necessarily considered as well as recorded in the consolidated financial statements.

Mmdhﬂy.hﬁrm%mdwmmmmﬁmmwmmwmmmpmmmupmnr
ﬂwmuﬂunﬂmuumdmmmfﬂrmmmﬁmmmnmth1mhmuﬂhnmmﬂmﬂmm
adjustments on the consolidated financial statements. The main assumptions are as follows:
Impairment of non-financial assets
mmmmmmmmmwmmmmmm.m
ndaqnﬁpmmtmdwlemwﬁﬂngﬁnmmynhmpmlmmudcmmmHMium
material impact of COVID-19.

15 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures were regrouped in order to conform to current year's presentation. Such regroupings have no
effect on previously reported loss or total equity.
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Corporate governance principles reflect the rules, regulations and procedures which optimize
protection and equilibrium among interests of companies, shareholders and the stakeholders.
The main target beyond implementation of governance rules is represented in enabling the
company to meet shareholders’ objectives in a manner which enhances shareholders’
confidence in the company’s efficient performance and ability to face crises.

Corporate governance principles regulate the methodology pertinent to decision-making at the
company and create transparent and sound decisions. The most important corporate rule is
embodied in protection of shareholders’ equity and separation of authority between Executive
management — which manages the company’s affairs and the Board of Directors which
prepares and review plans and policies in that company. As such, those principles are an
additional assurance which creates a sense of confidence in dealing with such company.
Furthermore, they enable shareholders and stakeholders to manage the company effectively.

On 27 June 2013, Capital Market Authority made its decision no. 25/2013 whereby corporate
governance rules have been issued under CMA’s supervision. Corporate governance rules
have been issued as provided for in Article (40) Executive Regulation, Law 7/2010 in
connection with the creation of CMA & organization of securities activity where it stipulates that
CMA shall determine a particular regulation for governance. In addition, terms and provisions of
Article 217, Law 25/2012 which enacts Companies’ Act, as amended, which indicates as
follows: "The relevant regulatory authorities shall determine governance rules for the
companies, governed by them, so as to optimize protection and balance between company’s
management interests and its shareholders as well as the stakeholders. Also, such law sets
forth the requirements that shall be met by Board of Directors’ independent members.

Corporate governance principles have been revised by Decree 48/2015 issued on 30 June
2015 noting that such decree was reenacted in part 15, executive regulation, Law 7/2010 in
connection with creation of CMA and organization of securities activity. Such rules were applied
on 30 June 2016.

Corporate governance principles comprise a package of mainstays and requirements, on which
deliberate management is based, as well as the methodology for applying such rules and
principles. Such methodology determines benchmarks related to governance principles’
application mechanism including a balanced Board of Directors structure together with
independent members and non-executive members, determination of the liabilities and roles
entrusted to both the Board of Directors and the Executive management in addition to stress on
fairness of financial reports and the necessity for providing a good management of risks,
internal controls, attention and promotion of professional conduct and ethical values together
with the importance to provide mechanisms pertaining to disclosure, transparency, shareholder
equity protection, realization of stakeholders’ role, overcoming conflict of interests, performance
improvement and stress on the social significance shouldered by companies.

Pursuant to the positive steps adopted by CMA, through the regulations, ordinances and
decisions via which CMA attempts to improve business environment, transparency and protect
shareholder equity, SOOR always exerts its utmost efforts depending on an integral staff who
are dedicated to adherence to all laws and decrees in professional and timely manner as
required.



FIRST RULE: BUILDING A BALANCED STRUCTURE OF THE BOARD

OF DIRECTORS

Board of Directors’ decisions have a remarkable effect on the company's performance

and proper financial position. Hence, SOOR's Board of Directors comprises a sufficient

number of members (9 members) for constitution of the required number of the Board

committees as per corporate governance principles and regulations. When the Board of

Directors was constituted, various experiences and competent skills have been taken

into consideration in a manner which optimizes decision making. In addition, non-

executive members represent the Board of Directors majority. Also, the Board of

Directors includes one independent member.

1- BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMPOSITION:

Name

Member Ranking

Academic Degrees

Practical Expertise

Nomination/ Election
Date

; Bachelor of . e
el MOha.mmcd Non-executive Business & o Bus.' i 10/04/2019
Al-Awadi P Administration
Administration
i 23 years, Business
Mz, Talal Abmed Al Executive B:u.ly.lorof Administration and 10/04/2019
Khars Science
Development
; : Bachelor of
BORIEUPBEII Non-executive Business and 28 years, Oil Sector 30/10/2017
Jaber Al-Sabah :
Accounting
22 years, Management
: Bachelor of ;
SIESREeE Tl Non-executive Computer g Computcr.Syst?ms, 10/04/2019
Mousa 8 IT and Engineering
Science :
Services
Bachelor of
: ) Business 31 years, Financial,
Mr. Hani Fawaz Al- Non-executive Administration Investment Field and 10/04/2019
Jawabrah ; .
Finance Master Risk Management
Degree
St a R an0u Non-executive Bachelor of Arts Z0jyeare Beallistais 10/04/2019
Al-Omar Sector
: ; Bachelor in
Mr. Ali l—[uss_am Al- Non-executive Petroleum 31 years, Qil Sector 18/06/2019
Kandri : :
Engineering
L Abtiﬁl_fzilz Malek Non-executive Bachelor of Law 12 years, Field of Law 10/04/2019
Mr. Jaber : ;
Mohammed Independent Bacticlomiof 24 years m Busmess 09/04/2019
: Accounting Administration
Ashknani
Bachelor of 31 years in Business
Mr. Salem Al-Hasawi | Board Secretary | Management and Administration and 10/04/2019

Marketing

Marketing

63




2 -BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETINGS:

Name

Title

M 1 dated
3/2/2020

M 2 dated
5/3/2020

M 3 dated
9/4/2020

M4 dated
13/8/2020

M 5 dated
11/11/2020

M 6 dated 18/11/2020

N
of

Secretary

meetings
Mr. Tarif Moha‘mmed Gk v v 7 v v v 2
Al-Awadi
D .
Mr. Talal Ahmed Al- . hm:']:;“ v v v 7 v v :
Khars and CEO
Sheikh/ Faisal Al-Jaber Board
Al-Sabah Member v v v v v o 6
Mr. Essa Ibrahim Al- Board v B T v i v 6
Mousa Member
Mr. Hani Fawaz Al- Board v v 7 v 5 7
Iawabrah Member 6
Mr. Meshaal Yaqoub Board vy o 7 P 7 y
Al-Omar Member 6
" " . Board
Mr. Ali Hussain Al-Kandari | ot v v v v v v 6
Mr. Jaber Mohammed Board 5 R v 7 v/ v
Ashknani Member s
: : Board
Mr. Abdulaziz Malek Al-Ali | O v v e v v v 6
Mr. Salem Al-Hassawi Bgard 4 v e v v v 6

3- RECORDING, COORDINATION AND RETAINING BOARD OF DIRECTORS’
MINUTES OF MEETINGS.

e The company maintains an annual record, in connection with Board of Directors

meetings, comprising minutes under serial numbers during the year in which the

meeting was held as well as meeting’s venue, date, staring time and ending time. In
addition, copies of all documents, which have been discussed during meeting, are

attached.

» Secretary of the Board namely Mr. Salem Al-Hassawi — Vice President of Sales,
Marketing & PR Department — undertakes the duties entrusted to him by virtue of
governance principles. Such duties are outlined in preparation for Board of Directors
meetings and sending necessary documents and invitations within 3 days prior to the

Board of Directors’ meeting. Moreover, the Board Secretary registers all decrees and

discussions made among members, records members’ voting results on decrees,

coordinates, and maintain all documents which have been discussed during meetings.

64




» SOOR’s Board of Directors has approved the Board of Directors’ Charter. The charter
regulates the details of all roles, powers and authorities assigned to both the Board of
Directors and the Executive management noting that this regulation reflects
separation between the duties and powers entrusted to the Board of Directors and
those assigned to the executive management in a manner which ensures the entire
independence and efficiency for all parties. Further, the Board of Directors’ liabilities
are clearly indicated in SOOR'’s articles of association with observation of the general
assembly’s roles.

» Approves company’s important strategies, plans and policies.

» Approves company’s capital structure and financial targets.

e Sets company’s overall strategies as well as the main business plans, reviews and
direct the same.

« Participates in achieving SOOR’s profits.

e Supervises SOOR’s main capital expenditures, possession of assets and disposal
thereof.

e Ensures compliance with policies and procedures in respect of adherence to
applicable rules and regulations through support by both Audit Committee and Risk
Committee affiliated to the Board of Directors.

e Assumes liability toward shareholders and bears responsibility before the relevant
stakeholders.

* Monitors and supervises the executive management’s performance.

» Monitors performance of each member at the Board of Directors and the executive
management based on the key performance indicators determined by support from
Nomination & Remunerating Committee.

» Approves SOOR'’s governance report which shall be recited at the general assembly.
Such report shall include company’s full governance requirements and procedures
and compliance therewith.

» Determines SOOR'’s governance framework without contradiction to CMA’s corporate
provisions and principles. Supervises such framework in general, monitors its
efficiency and modifies it when necessary.

e Ensures accuracy and authenticity of the data and information which shall be
disclosed in conformity to disclosure and transparency policies and bylaws.



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK, APPROVED BY THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS, REFLECTS THE CHAIRMAN'S ROLES AND
RESPONSIBILITIES PURSUANT TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRINCIPLES AS OUTLINED HEREUNDER:

» Ensures effective discussion of all principal issues by the Board of Directors in a
timely manner.

e Supports and assists the executive management.

* Represents SOOR towards other parties as contemplated in SOOR’s articles of
association.

e Encourages all Board of Directors members to participate fully and effectively in
running the Board of Directors’ affairs so that the Board of Directors can take actions
in favor of SOOR.

» Ensures the actual communication with shareholders and forwards their opinions to
the Board of Directors.

» Promotes positive relations and effective participation among both the Board of
Directors and the executive management.

» Creates positive criticism attitudes regarding the issues which are exposed to
different points of view among Board of Directors members.
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SOOR HAS A COMPETENT EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT TEAM.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK REFLECTS THE EXECUTIVE
MANAGEMENT'S ROLES AND LIABILITIES TO WHICH IT SHALL ADHERE
IN VIEW OF THE AUTHORITIES AND POWERS VESTED AND APPROVED
BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AS SUMMARIZED HERE IN BELOW:

* Implements SOOR policies, regulations and internal systems approved by the Board
of Directors.

» Executes the annual strategies and plans approved by the Board of Directors.

» Prepares the periodical reports related to the progress accomplished in company’s
activities in view of SOOR'’s strategic plans and targets.

e Administers the daily tasks and run activity in addition to optimal management of
SOOR'’s resources, profit maximization and expenditure reduction as per company’s
goals and strategies.

« Participates effectively in promoting and developing ethical value attitudes at SOOR.

e Prepares Internal Control Review & Risk Management System to ensure the
effectiveness as well as adequacy of such systems and abide by risk tolerance
approved by the Board of Directors.

e Upgrade the IT infrastructure to generate data and necessary information required for
decision making pursuant to SOOR'’s expansion strategy and needs.

» Prepares key performance indicators for SOOR's employees and periodically
evaluates the duties accomplished by them.

e Formulates a clear action mechanism in respect of monitoring the regulatory rules
and regulations pertaining to SOOR activities in order to ensure implementation and
compliance therewith.
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» Determine the essential employees and their tasks to carry out the basic operations
of Soor Fuel Marketing Company.

e Transferring to a remote work system, providing laptops, Internet connection, and
other means necessary to do the work without interruption.

e Converting company meetings to meetings via video calls, in order to avoid
gatherings and to ensure continuity of communication between employees and
different departments.

» Reducing the number of fuel workers and redistributing workers based on the needs
of each station and closing some fuel islands, especially during the total ban period,
as part of a plan to reduce expenses and material burdens without affecting the
workflow and providing the best service to customers within Alfa fuel stations.

» During the zonal isolation, and in the event of malfunctions in the fuel pumps, the fuel
island will be closed due to the limited number of maintenance workers and their
presence in those isolated areas.

* Provided daily meals for workers at Alfa fuel stations, in addition to providing
accommodation to reduce the possibility of workers getting infected with the virus and
reduce the chances of spreading the infection.

e Ensured that the necessary health measures are implemented in the workplace,
which includes wearing masks, social distancing, and providing sterilizers to all
employees.

e Ensured that all precautionary measures are taken, including the percentage of
employees’ in the workplace, according to the Ministry of Health'’s instructions.

 Provided periodic sterilization to the main office of Soor Fuel Marketing Company and
Alfa Fuel stations.

e Restructuring and reducing the company's expenses in order to reduce the losses of
Soor Fuel Marketing Company during the Corona pandemic.



» Authorized the annual estimated balance sheet and approved periodical and annual
financial statements of year 2020.

e Followed up committees’ achievements and ensured on such committees’
responsibilities and powers.

» The Board held periodic meetings with the committees to ensure that they carried out
their duties in the fullest manner and to evaluate the performance and work of those
committees and their main members.

» Reviewed and approved the policy and procedures updates for each of the Safety
Health Environment & Quality, and Logistics department, Marketing and Sales
Department, and the Risk Management Department.

e Monitored performance of each Board of Directors member as per the key
performance indicators determined by support from Nomination & Remuneration
Committee.

» Reviewed and approved the Corporate Governance Report, Audit Committee Report,
and the Compliance Report for the year 2019.

» Reviewed and approved the Risk Register report prepared by the Risk Management
Department.

* Reviewed and approved the updated Risk Assessment Matrix prepared by the Risk
Management Department.

 Reviewed and approved the updated Risk Appetite prepared by the Risk
Management.

» Reviewed and approved the updated charters of the Board of Directors, Audit
Committee, and Remuneration and Nomination Committee.

* Reviewed and approved the updated Internal audit Policies and Procedures,
Remuneration Policies.

» Reviewed the business continuity plan prepared by the Risk Management department
that measures the effectiveness of the executive management’s decision during the
pandemic.



3 - BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMITTEES
AUDIT COMMITTEE

e Formation Date: 13/05/20109.
« Committee Tenure: Expires when the Board of Directors’ term comes to its end.

Committee Members Title Ranking
Mr. Hani Fawaz Al-Jawabrah Comimittee Non-executive
Chairman member
Mr. Essa Ibrahim Al-Moussa Committee Non-executive
Member member
Mr. Jaber Mohammed Ashknani Committee Independent
Member member

Number of meetings held in 2020: 9 meetings

AUDIT COMMITTEE’S ASSIGNMENTS & ACHIEVEMENTS DURING YEAR 2020:

e Due to the circumstances of the Corona pandemic that the world has gone through, and the
closures imposed by the country to limit the spread of Corona virus, the regulatory authorities
approved the merging of the financial statements for the first and second quarter of the fiscal year
2020, and accordingly, the audit committee held three meetings with the external auditor to review
the financial statements Before submitting it to the Board of Directors where the Audit Committee
demonstrated its opinion and recommendation to the Board of Directors for ensuring fairness,
transparency, and authenticity of financial statements as well as SOOR'’s internal controls noting
that SOOR held its periodical meetings during which financial reports have been perused. The
Audit Committee forwarded its recommendations to the Board of Directors for approval.

e The Audit Committee monitored the works of the external auditor and ensured that such auditors
have never provided services to SOOR other than those required for audit work.

¢ Reviewed external auditor's comments on SOOR financial reports and monitored what have been
accomplished in this regard.

¢ Reviewed audit and governance reports before they were forwarded to general assembly.

e Conducted technical supervision over SOOR’s internal audit unit provided by (Al-Aiban & Al-
Qatami Company, a Member of Grant Thornton International) to ensure that such unit had
undertaken the duties and assignments determined by the Board of Directors.

e Forwarded necessary recommendations to the Board of Directors in connection with appointment,
reappointment or change of external auditor or determination of his fees.

¢ Reviewed conclusions of internal audit reports and ensured that valid actions had been taken
regarding the comments set forth in such reports.

¢ Reviewed the Internal Controls Review Report.

e The Audit Committee met four times with the internal auditor to monitor internal audits at SOOR
and reviewed audit reports pertinent to SOOR various departments.
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE DURING YEAR 2020:

» Constitution Date: 13/05/2019
« Committee Tenure: Expires when the Board of Directors’ term comes to its end

Member Name Title Ranking
Mr. Jaber Mohammed Ashknani Committee Independent
Chairman member
Mr. Talal Ahmad Al-Khars Committee Executive member
Member
Mr. Abdulaziz Malik Al-Ali Committee Non-executive
Member member

Number of meetings held in 2020: 4 meetings

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE’S ASSIGNMENTS & ACHIEVEMENTS DURING
THE YEAR 2020:

» Reviewed and approved the updated Risk Management Policies & Procedures manual
prepared by the Risk Management Department.

» Reviewed and approved an update of the report conducted by the Risk Department on
the potential risks that may arise from the audit findings for each department.

» Reviewed an updated risk appetite report prepared by the Risk Management
Department.

» Reviewed a report prepared by the Risk Management Department about the coping of
the company with the pandemic of COVID-109.

» Reviewed a report prepared by Risk Management about the strategic acquisition of
Injazat Tower and forwarded it to the Board of Directors for review.

» Reviewed the Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery Plan prepared by the Risk
Management Department.
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NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

e Formation Date: 13/05/2019
» Committee Tenure: Expires when the Board of Directors’ term comes to its end.

Committee Member Title Ranking
Mr. Mishaal Yagoub Al-Omar Comumittee Non-executive
Chairman member
M. Talal Ahmad Al-Khars Committee Executive
Member member
Mr. Jaber Mohammed Ashknani Committee Independent
Member member

Number of meetings held in 2020: 1 meeting

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE'’S ASSIGNMENTS
& ACHIEVEMENTS DURING YEAR 2020:

e Prepared an annual detailed report on all remunerations granted to Board of
Directors members and the executive management in 2019 Further, the committee
ensured that the report had been forwarded to general assembly for approval.

e The committee prepared a report on key performance indicators for overall
evaluation by the Board of Directors as well as participation of each Board of
Directors member and each committee in addition to appraisal of the executive
management.

REQUIREMENTS’ APPLICATION METHOD WHICH ALLOWS BOARD OF
DIRECTORS MEMBERS TO OBTAIN INFORMATION AND DATA ACCURATELY AND
IN A TIMELY MANNER:

e Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer periodically forwards SOOR’s latest
achievements to the Board of Directors.

e Further, SOOR, through the Board’s Secretary, provides to board members accurate
and clear information and data in order to be able to undertake and take over their
assignments and duties effectively and actively.

* SOOR ensures that all prepared reports are extremely valid and precise and that they
are furnished to board members at proper time for facilitating the process though
which decisions are timely made.
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1- NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:-

SOOR has a Nomination & Remuneration Committee affiliated to Board of Directors. The
committee comprises of three board members including one independent member.
Further, its chairman is a board non-executive member. The board has determined its
membership tenure and operation method in addition to its powers and responsibilities in
the committee’s charter approved by the board.

Nomination mechanism includes progressive selection of competent board and executive
management members. Also, SOOR has approved a remuneration mechanism for
maintaining efficient employees and attraction of new competent persons in addition to
assistance for achieving SOOR goals and progress. Remuneration system — pertaining to
executive management - is based on key performance indicators.

Moreover, the committee has prepared KPI Report for overall evaluation of the Board of
Directors as well as participation by each board member and each of the board ad hoc
committees in addition to appraisal of executive management performance.

2- REPORT ON REMUNERATIONS GRANTED TO BOARD MEMBERS &
EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT:

An annual detailed report — on all remunerations — either as sums or benefits - granted
to board members and executive managements — has been prepared for year 2019 in
addition to making sure that the report will be forwarded to SOOR general assembly for
approval and recitation by the Board’s Chairman.



1 -WRITTEN UNDERTAKINGS BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS & EXECUTIVE
MANAGEMENT ON SOUNDNESS & INTEGRITY OF PREPARED FINANCIAL
REPORTS:-
Integrity and fairness of SOOR's financial statements are regarded as an important
indicator to the company’s truthfulness and credibility in presenting its financial position,
a matter which makes shareholders and investors more confident in the statements and
information provided and disclosed by the company to its stakeholders.

Executive management undertakes in writing to Board of Directors that the company’s
financial reports are validly and fairly presented and to approach all financial sides
related to SOOR including operational statements and outcomes. Besides, such reports
are prepared as the recognized IFRSs. In addition, the annual report — provided to
shareholders by SOOR Board of Directors — includes a written undertaking of
soundness and integrity of all financial statements as well as the reports related to
SOOR’s business noting that the foregoing reports participate in enhancing
accountability of the executive management by the Board of Directors or of the board by
shareholders.

2—- AUDIT COMMITTEE FORMATION:-

SOOR has an audit committee which comprises three non-executive board members
including one independent member. The committee enjoys an absolute independence.
It includes one member holding academic qualifications and practical expertise on
accounting and financial fields. The board has determined AC’s tenure and operation
method. Moreover, it's powers and responsibilities specified in the committee charter
approved by the board. The committee held 9 meetings in 2020 where it discussed
multiple subject matters within its powers and assignments. It further met periodically
with SOOR’s external and internal auditors.



3-CONFLICT BETWEEN AUDIT COMMITTEE’S RECOMMENDATIONS &
BOARD OF DIRECTORS DECISIONS:-

In the event there is a conflict between the audit committee’s recommendations and
Board of Directors’ decisions including — when the Board of Directors rejects the
committee’s recommendations, in connection with the external auditor and/or internal
auditor, there shall be a detailed statement reflecting the recommendations and the
reason or reasons for the board’s deviation from adherence to them. In 2020, there was
no contradiction between the committee’s recommendations and Board of Directors’
decisions.

4- INDEPENDENCE & NEUTRALITY OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR:

SOOR'’s general ordinary assembly reappointed the company’s external auditor as per
Board of Directors’ decision. Such decision was based on the audit committee’s
recommendations taking into consideration that the external auditor is listed in the
Authority’s external Auditors register and meets all necessary requirements in this
regard. Moreover, the external auditor is independent from SOOR and its Board of
Directors and that he neither undertakes additional works for SOOR nor works included
under audit processes nor tasks which affect neutrality and independence.

Moreover, the external auditor attended SOOR annual general ordinary assembly
meeting where he recited the report prepared by him to SOOR shareholders.



1- RISK MANAGEMENT

SOOR has an independent risk management department affiliated to Risk Committee
and Board of Directors. This department mainly measures, monitors and evaluate all
risks surrounding SOOR and finds solutions to mitigate the adverse impacts of such
risks.

2- RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Risk Management Committee comprises of three board members including one
independent member. The board has determined its tenure and operation method.
Moreover, Risk Management Committee's powers and responsibilities are contemplated
in the committee charter approved by the board. Risk Management Committee held four
meetings in 2020 where it discussed multiple subject matters within its powers and
assignments.

3- INTERNAL CONTROLS REVIEW

SOOR's Internal controls include all systems which are adequate to maintain the
company’s financial integrity, statement accuracy and operation efficiency in all
respects. Moreover, SOOR has taken into consideration the four eyes principles for
internal control process which represented in sound determination of powers and
liabilities, the entire separation between assignments, no conflict of interests,
examination, double control and signature by the availability of an administrative and
financial structure as well as the procedures pertinent to SOOR in addition to IT systems
prepared and designed based on separation of assignments among the respective
departments and positions.

4- APPLICATION OF INDEPENDENT INTERNAL AUDIT UNIT/ OFFICE/
DEPARTMENT REQUIREMENTS

SOOR has entered a contract with an external firm to administer internal audit
processes (Al-Aiban & Al-Qatami Company, Member of Grant Thornton International)
which has full independence and expanded technical expertise in auditing field. Such
firm has prepared audit reports for all activities and operations of SOOR including its
various departments. Auditing reports include comments and recommendations in
addition to departments’ responses as well as business plans determined for taking
necessary actions according to forwarded recommendations. Such reports have been
presented to Audit Committee.



1-CODE OF CONDUCT WHICH INCLUDES PROFESSIONAL AS
WELL AS ETHICAL STANDARDS AND RESTRICTIONS:

SOOR has a code of conduct approved by the Board of Directors. This COC includes
standards and restrictions pertinent to professional conduct as well as ethical values.
Through sound professional conduct and ethical values, we can enhance the investor’'s
confidence in SOOR integrity and financial statements accuracy noting that all Board of
Directors and Executive management adhere to internal policies and regulations as well
as statutory and regulatory which optimize interests of all parties related to SOOR and
shareholders in particular with no conflict of interests and with high transparency. In
other words, SOOR’s governance framework includes compliance by all Board of
Directors and executive management members with all laws and regulations in a
manner which meets interest of SOOR, shareholders and all related parties and not
only the interest of a certain group. Code of conduct stresses on each member and
employee inside SOOR not to strive to achieve a persona interest to himself or to a
third party in addition to not using job influence for achieving a personal goal or benefit;
moreover, each member in SOOR shall avoid exploiting the company’s resources and
assets to a personal benefit. But he shall rather use them to optimize the company’s
targets. Above all, SOOR has determined a precise system which prohibits board
members and employees from using the information, obtained by them by virtue of their
positions, to their own personal advantage. Also, they are prohibited from disclosure of
the company’s information and data other than in the cases permitted by law. In brief,
there shall be an obvious separation between the interest of a Board Member and the
interest of the company.

2- PROPER POLICIES & PROCEDURES FOR LIMITATION OF
CONFLICT OF INTEREST:

SOOR'’s Board of Directors has determined the mechanism and policies required for
limitation of interest conflict cases including their correction methods as a part of the
company'’s governance framework with observation of Companies Law.



SEVENTH RULE: ACCURATE DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY
IN THE RIGHT TIME

1- MECHANISMS OF PRECISE TRANSPARENT PRESENTATION AND
DISCLOSURE WHICH DETERMINE DISCLOSURE’S RESPECTS, FIELDS AND
ISSUES:

Precise disclosure is deemed one of the main advantages and methods to monitor the
company’s operations and evaluate its performance. This leads shareholders and
investors to be aware of the company’s structures and activities as well as the policies
adopted by the company in addition to appraisal of the company’s performance in
connection with ethical standards. Board of Directors has determined, within the
company's governance framework, an approved policy for accurate and transparent
presentation and disclosure which reflects the sides, fields and issues pertinent to
disclosure noting that the Board of Directors is concerned with periodical review of
disclosure and transparency mechanisms and systems applicable at the company.

2- BOARD OF DIRECTORS & EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT’ S DISCLOSURE
RECORD:

SOOR maintains a special record which includes disclosures by board members and the
executive management of the ownership percentage of the company’s shares in addition
to declarations by insiders which are updated as per provisions of CMA regulation noting
that such record is made available for perusal by all the company’s shareholders without
charge or consideration. Moreover, SOOR periodically updates this record in a manner
which reflects condition of the stakeholders.

3- INVESTOR AFFAIRS UNIT

Vice President of Finance and Accounts Department has been instructed to undertake
investor affairs management. He will be held liable for making available and providing
the financial statements, information and reports required by potential investors.
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SOOR uses Information Technology at a large level by upgrading several systems
adopted in the company’s various operations.

Furthermore, SOOR possesses a substantial and effective website encompassing all
information and data pertinent to the company’s business together with the latest
developments which help investors as well as current and potential investors to practice
their rights and evaluate the company’s performance in addition to a section related to
corporate governance noting that SOOR periodically updates its website.

SOOR has a recognized policy belonging to shareholders’ equity. Further, SOOR article
of association include procedures and restrictions required for all shareholders to
practice their rights in order to improve and protect shareholders’ general equity for
ensuring fairness and equality among all shareholders regardless of their levels. Under
no circumstances, the company shall not conceal any information or any of
shareholders’ equity.

HERE IN BELOW SOME OF SHAREHOLDERS GENERAL
EQUITY GUARANTEED BY SOOR:

 Entry of shareholding in the company’s registers.

e Shareholders’ rights to deal with shares including possession’s registration and/ or
acquisition.

» Shareholder right to obtain the prescribed share of dividends.

» Shareholder receives a share of the company’s assets in case of liquidation.

» Shareholder right to obtain the details and information pertaining to the company’s
activity as well as operational and investment strategy in a regular and proper
manner.

» Shareholder's right to participate in general assembly in addition to voting over its
decisions.

» Shareholder’s right to elect board members.

e Monitor the company’s performance in general and the Board of Directors’
assignments in particular.



For progressive monitoring of all matters related to shareholders’ details, SOOR maintains
a special register with Clearing Agency. This register contains shareholders’ names,
nationalities, addresses and number of shares held by each one of them. Any changes
made to the details, set forth in such register, are updated in shareholders’ register based
on the details received by the company or clearance agency. Each concerned person is
entitled to request the company or clearing agency to provide him with statements of such
register.

» SOOR respects shareholders’ right to participate in the company's general assembly
meetings and vote over its decisions. This is deemed as an original right of
shareholders irrespective of their different levels noting that participation and voting
mechanism therein is contemplated in Shareholders’ Equity Policy and governance
framework applicable at SOOR in conformity to the company’s articles of association.
The company’s articles of association clearly include the procedures and restrictions
required for ensuring participation by all shareholders of their rights in a manner which
establishes fairness and equality without inconsistency with the applicable laws and
regulations as well as the orders and instructions issued in this regard.

* SOOR has approved shareholders’ participation mechanism in the company's general
assembly meetings based on an invitation by the Board of Directors for meeting within
three months following the end of the fiscal year noting that convention by SOOR shall
be through all natification channels including Kuwait Stock Exchange's website and
daily newspapers. The Board of Directors invites the general assembly for meeting if
required or at a justified request by a number of shareholders who hold not less than
ten percent of the company’s capital or at request of the auditor in the course of fifteen
days of request.

» SOOR approves voting mechanism as to shareholders’ general meetings as set forth in
the company’s articles of association by allowing all shareholders to participate in
voting right without placing any obstacles which may lead to voting restriction. This is
because voting is an original right to shareholder. Hence, it cannot be terminated in any
way.



NINTH RULE: RESPECT THE RIGHTS OF STAKEHOLDERS

1-REGULATIONS AND POLICIES WHICH ENSURE PROTECTION AND
RECOGNITION STAKEHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS:

SOOR respects and protects rights of stakeholders in all incoming and outgoing
transactions. Therefore, it has prepared, within the company’s governance framework, a
policy approved by the Board of Directors including rules and procedures which ensures
the protection of stakeholders’ rights and allows them to obtain indemnifications if any of
their rights are breached.

For no conflict of interests belonging to stakeholders, either in connection with contracts
or spot transactions with the company, with those pertinent to shareholders, it is worth
saying that stakeholders may not obtain privileges via their dealing in contracts and
transactions which fall within the company’s usual activities. Moreover, the company
determines internal policies and regulations which ensure an obvious mechanism in
respect of awarding all various types of contracts and transactions via tenders or
different purchase orders.

2- ENCOURAGING STAKEHOLDERS TO PARTICIPATE IN
MONITORING SOOR’S DIFFERENT ACTIVITIES:

The company allows stakeholders to obtain the information and data pertaining to their
activities to be depended on in a timely and regular manner.

In addition, the company sets proper mechanisms to make it easier for stakeholders to
forward a report to the company’s Board of Directors on any unsound practices burdened

on them by the company noting that proper protection shall be made available to
reporting parties.
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TENTH RULE: ENCOURAGE AND ENHANCE PERFORMANCE

1- BOARD OF DIRECTORS & EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT MEMBERS’
PROGRESSIVE TRAINING PROGRAM & COURSE MECHANISM:

SOOR approves adequate training programs, workshops and conferences for the
current board members and the executive management pertaining to the company’s
business and role of board members in order to elaborate their skills and expertise in
addition to matching with developments in a manner which helps them to perform their
duties.

2- OVERALL APPRAISAL OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS PERFORMANCE &
INDIVIDUAL PERFORMANCE OF EACH BOARD MEMBER AND
EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT MEMBER:

SOOR has applied systems and appraisals so as to evaluate performance of board
members as well as executive management members on a periodical basis. In this
regard, evaluation relies on a series of key performance indicators related to
accomplishment of the company’s strategic goals, effective risk management and
adequate internal audit for appraisal of each of the aforementioned members as well as
the relevant committees. In addition, there are performance indicators which evaluate
the executive management performance on an annual basis to reflect their points of
strength and weakness and deal with them to the benefit of SOOR.

3- CORPORATE VALUE CREATION:

Board of Directors strives to establish short, medium and long-term values by
determining and providing mechanism and procedures which can fulfill the company’s
strategic goals and improve performance rates in a manner that efficiently participates in
motivating employees to work continually to maintain the company’s financial integrity.

The company works hard on internal and integral reporting systems to become more
comprehensive as this helps the board members as well as the executive management
to make decisions effectively hence meeting shareholders’ interests.
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ELEVENTH RULE: FOCUS ON THE IMPORTANCE OF CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

1- MAKING BALANCE BETWEEN SOOR GOALS AND SOCIETY
TARGETS AS WELL AS PROGRAMS AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
WORK:

SOOR has determined a policy to make balance between the company’s goals and
society objectives represented in improving living, social and economic conditions of
society.

2- ADOPTED PROGRAMS AND MECHANISMS WHICH REFLECT THE
EFFORTS EXERTED BY SOOR AT SOCIAL WORK LEVEL:

* Increasing employment of Kuwaitis.

e SOOR participated in protecting environment from pollution and environmental
damages by waste recycling technology at all parts of the company in addition to
encouraging participants to collect wastes as an initial step for recycling.

* Provided daily meals for workers at Alfa fuel stations, in addition to providing
accommodation to reduce the possibility of workers getting infected with the virus and

reduce the chances of spreading the infection.
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